
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	 93923		

 
November 21, 2019 

Thursday 
9:00AM 

 

 
 
 
 

 

1



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held October 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

1 

 

  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
October 31st, 2019 

 
 

	
CALL	TO	ORDER	‐	ROLL	CALL	‐ The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m.				
	
Present:		 Directors: Robert Siegfried, Charlotte Townsend, Michael Rachel, And President 

White 
Absent:		 Greg D’Ambrosio 
 
Others:	 				 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 																			

Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD)	
                     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
                     Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent, CAWD 
                     Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
                     Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
                     Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
                     Kristina Pacheco, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
                     Rob Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
                     Leo Laska, Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD) 
                     Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
                     Margaret Robbins, Public Participant 
                     Dick Stott, Carmel Valley Association 
                     Charles Hayes, Arroyo Carmel HOA 

  
     

1. Appearances/Public	Comments:	Anyone	wishing	to	address	the	Board	on	a	matter	
not	appearing	on	 the	agenda	may	do	so	now.	Public	comment	shall	be	 limited	 to	3	
minutes	per	person.	No	action	shall	be	taken	on	any	item	not	appearing	on	the	agenda.	
During	 consideration	 of	 any	 agenda	 item,	 public	 comments	 shall	 be	 limited	 to	 3	
minutes	 per	 person	 and	will	 be	 allowed	 prior	 to	 Board	 action	 on	 the	 item	 under	
discussion.		
Note:	 If	 you	 believe	 you	 possess	 any	 disability	 that	 would	 require	 special	
accommodations	in	order	to	attend	this	meeting,	please	call	Carmel	Area	Wastewater	
District	at	624‐1248.	
	
	
	

2



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held October 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

2 

 

	

2. Agenda	Changes: Any	requests	to	move	an	item	forward	on	the	agenda	will	be	considered	
at	this	time.	

Two agenda item changes: 
 Item #14 on the Agenda at page 69 - a replacement of the page to address a status 

change for The Microfiltration/Reverse Osmosis (MF/RO) Sound Barriers Project No. 
19-12. 

 Item #21 on the Agenda - an addition of a memorandum staff report inserted as page 
169A. 

 

ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted 
upon  in  the  following  sequence:  (1)  Staff  Report  (2)  Board  Questions  to  Staff  (3)  Public 
Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

 

 

CONSENT	CALENDAR:	APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES,	 FINANCIAL	
STATEMENTS	AND	MONTHLY	REPORTS	
The  Consent  Agenda consists  of  routine  items  for which Board  approval  can  be  taken  with  a 
single motion and vote. A Board Member may request that any item be placed on the  Regular 
Agenda for separate consideration. 
 
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	the	

Board	unanimously	approved	the	Regular	Meeting	Minutes	of	September	26th,	2019,	and	
enacted	the	following	Consent	Calendar	items:	

 

3.  Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes on September 26, 2019             
	 	 			
4.		Receive and Accept Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland–September 2019                       
 
5.  Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements – September 2019                   
 
6.  Approve Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District –September 2019          
 
7.  Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project –September 2019 
 
8.  Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules – September 2019 

3



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held October 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

3 

 

 
9.  Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s Report  
								September, August & July 2019  

Director Siegfried asked if follow up was done on a service call, to locate a 
cleanout, that CAWD advised be referred to a plumber. Daryl Lauer, Collections 
Superintendent, advised follow up will be done.  

	
10.  Receive and Accept Safety and Regulatory Compliance Report – September 2019  
 
11.  Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report  
            September, August & July 2019 (August amended) 
 
12.  Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report –September 2019  
 
13. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan –September 2019  

Director Rachel requested that for all upcoming resolutions the project number be 
included in order to connect the project summaries with the resolutions and Barbara 
Buikema noted, going forward, this will be done. 

 
14. Receive and Accept Project Summaries 

Director Siegfried requested change of language on page 62 for Project Number 19-
04, -05, -08, -09 & -18-21.  Under Project Description - change the following language: 
“The project will remove existing homes and businesses from using septic tanks and 
add…”  to: “The project will provide the opportunity for homes and businesses to get 
off the septic system and …”   

	
15. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – September 2019  
 
16. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report – September 2019  
	
17. Receive Principal Engineer Monthly Report General Engineering – September 2019  
 
ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted 
upon  in  the  following  sequence:  (1)  Staff  Report  (2)  Board  Questions  to  Staff  (3)  Public 
Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

	
	

4



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held October 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

4 

 

RESOLUTIONS	
18.	Resolution	No.	2019‐51; A Resolution Approving Posting A Notice Of Intent To 
Adopt Mitigated Negative Declaration For Eucalyptus Pruning –  Report	 by  Plant	
Engineer,	Patrick	Treanor 
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	President	White	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	the	

Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐51.	
	

19.	Resolution	No.	2019‐52; A Resolution Authorizing An Amount Not To Exceed 
$20,000 To Fund Change Orders For The Construction Of The Hatton Canyon Access 
Road Grading Project For A Total Project Cost Not To Exceed $218,477 – Written Report	
by Principal	Engineer,	Rachél	Lather;	Oral	Report	by	Collections	Superintendent,	Daryl	
Lauer 
	

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	the	

Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐52.	
	

	
20.	Resolution	No.	2019‐53; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Enter 
Into A Contract Amendment With MNS Engineers To  Increase The Contract Award From 
$35,000.00  To  An  Amount  Not  To  Exceed  $42,993.00  For  MNS  Engineers  To  Provide 
Engineering  Support  Services  For  The  Construction  Of  The  Hatton  Canyon  Access  Road 
Project– Written Report	by Principal	Engineer,	Rachél	Lather;	Oral	Report	by	Collections	
Superintendent,	Daryl	Lauer 

 
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Townsend	and	seconded	by	Director	Siegfried,	
the	Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐53.	

	
	

ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are acted 
upon  in  the  following  sequence:  (1)  Staff  Report  (2)  Board  Questions  to  Staff  (3)  Public 
Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

 

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	

21.	November/December	2019	Regular	Board	Meeting	Date	–	Report	by	General	Manager,																			
Barbara	Buikema	
	

5



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held October 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

5 

 

	
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	the	
Board	unanimously	agreed	to	have	the	next	Board	Meetings	on	November	21,	2019	

and	December	19,	2019.	
	

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION	ITEMS	

22.	Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD)	09‐27‐19	Regular	Board	Meeting	–	
Report	by	General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema 

Informational	Only	–	No	Action	Required	
	
23.	Review	of	Government	Code	§	4525‐2529.5	–	Report	by	General	Manager,	Barbara	Buikema 

Informational	Only	–	No	Action	Required	
	

Board Counsel, Robert Wellington, noted the need for a change of language in the Staff Report 
submitted by Barbara Buikema at page 173.  The report will be amended.   
	
24.	Update	on	the	Mr.	Larsen	Connection	In	Carmel	Highlands	–	Oral	Report	by	Collections		
Superintendent,	Daryl	Lauer 

Informational	Only	–	No	Action	Required	
	

STAFF	&	BOARD	MEMBER	REPORTS	

Staff Reports include items for which verbal reports/presentation will be provided. If a specific 
presentation  is planned,  it will  be  listed and summary information may be  included with the 
Agenda.  Brief oral reports may be provided for items arising after the Agenda preparation. The 
Board may wish to ask questions or discuss a staff report, but no action is appropriate other than 
referral to staff, or request that a matter be set as a future Agenda Item. 

	

COMMUNICATIONS	

25.	General Manager’s Report 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 															

 Coastal Commission Update - Oral Report by Barbara Buikema 
 
 

26.	Announcements On Subjects Of Interest To The Board Made By Members Of The Board Or 
Staff         

       Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their 
activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

6



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held October 31, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

6 

 

 
PBCSD	Board	Public	Meeting	Notice	&	Agenda	– The next PBCSD meetings are scheduled for:		 
Friday, October 25, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. Director	Rachel	is	scheduled	to	attend.	
Friday, December 13, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. Director	Rachel	is	scheduled	to	attend.	
 
Special	Districts	Association	of	Monterey	County	– The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 6:00 pm. Director	Townsend	is	scheduled	to	attend. 
 

Reclamation	Management	Committee	Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Wednesday, November 6, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. Director	Townsend	and	Director	White	are	scheduled	to	
attend.		

	
	
27.	 	CLOSED	SESSION:	A  closed  session  of  the  Board  is  not  planned,  but may  be  held  if 
necessary for certain limited purposes authorized pursuant to California Government Code. 

	

28.		ADJOURNMENT	

There	being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Board,	the	President	adjourned	the	meeting	at	
10:05	a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, November 21, 2019 or an 
alternate  acceptable date, in the Board Room of the District Office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923. 
NOTE:  Staff  reports  and materials  regarding  these  agenda  items  are  available  for  public  review 
Monday through Wednesday of the week  immediately prior to the Board Meeting at the District 
Office or at www.cawd.org. After staff reports have been distributed, if additional documents  are 
produced by the District and provided to a majority of the Board regarding any item on the agenda, 
they will be available at the District Office during normal business hours.  Documents distributed at 
the meeting will be made available in the same manner. 

 

 

Respectfully	submitted:	 	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 __________________________________________________	

Domine	Barringer,	Secretary	to	the	Board	
	
	
APPROVED:	
	
	
________________________________________________	
Ken	White,	President		

7



Minutes of the CAWD Special Board Meeting held November 7, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. 

1 

 

 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)  
		 	 	 SPECIAL	BOARD	MEETING	MINUTES	‐Pension	Plan	

November 7, 2019 
	

	
CALL	TO	ORDER	‐	ROLL	CALL		 The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.				
 
Present:		 Director Michael Rachel, Pension Committee member 

Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAW District Legal Counsel, Pension 
Committee member 

 
Absent:		 none  

 
 
Others:		 Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

 William Hastie, Managing Partner, Hastie Financial Group 
	

 

1. OPENING	SESSION	AT: 
	

a. There was a review of the 3rd Quarter 2019 Strategic Asset Management Pension Plan 
performance along with a summary of the 4th Quarter Action Plan.  The report was 
accepted, no further action was required. 

 
b. There was a review of the 2019 Actuarial Report.  It was agreed to forward the 

document to the full board, no further action was required.  
 

	
ADJOURNMENT:	There	being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Committee,	the	meeting	was	
adjourned		at	10:40	a.m.	The	next	Regular	Meeting	will	be	held	at	9:00	a.m.,	Thursday,	November	21,	
2019	or	an	alternate,	acceptable	date,	in	the	Board	Room	of	the	District	Office,	3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	
CA	93923.	

	
As	Reported	To:	

	

____________________________________________________	

Domine	Barringer,	Secretary	to	the	Board	

APPROVED:	

________________________________________________	
Ken	White,	President	

8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page Intentional left blank 

Pending receipt of H&W Independent 

Accountants’ Report – not received at 

time of Board packet build. 

9



C
a
p

it
a
l

C
o
m

p
en

sa
te

d
D

ef
en

d
 o

r
C

O
U

N
T

Y
U

n
io

n
 B

a
n

k
U

n
io

n
 B

a
n

k

C
a
p

it
a
l

Im
p

ro
v
em

en
t

G
en

er
a
l 
O

 &
 M

A
cc

ru
a
ls

M
a
n

a
g
ed

  
R

et
re

a
t

T
o
ta

l 
F

u
n

d
B

a
n

k
 O

 &
 M

B
a
n

k
 P

R
L

.A
.I

.F
.

F
u

n
d

R
es

er
v
e

F
u

n
d

R
es

er
v
e

R
es

er
v
e

B
a
la

n
ce

B
a
la

n
ce

B
a
la

n
ce

B
a
la

n
ce

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

 O
F

 M
O

N
T

H
$

7
,3

8
0

,6
7

3
$

1
2

,0
7

8
,1

2
5

$
7

,1
6

8
,9

8
9

$
2

0
9

,2
1

6
$

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
$
2
8
,8

3
7
,0

0
3

$
2
5
9
,2

4
4

$
1
1
1
,4

1
1

$
1
,1

6
5
,0

1
2

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
:

  
 U

se
r 

F
ee

s 
4
,0

4
9

  
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 T
ax

es
 

  
 P

B
C

S
D

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

F
ee

s 
9
0
,0

0
0

  
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n

 O
 &

 M
 r

ei
m

b
u

rs
em

en
t

  
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n

 c
ap

it
al

 b
il

li
n

g

  
 P

er
m

it
s

7
,0

2
5

  
 P

B
C

S
D

 c
ap

it
al

 b
il

li
n

g

  
 O

th
er

 m
is

c.
 r

ev
en

u
e

1
8
,1

3
2

  
 I

n
te

re
st

 i
n

co
m

e 
1

7
,1

7
6

  
 C

o
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
 F

ee
s

4
,6

1
6

  
 P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

6
0
0

  
 W

/C
 a

u
d

it
 r

ef
u

n
d

  
 C

C
L

E
A

N
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

1
3
,9

4
4

  
 P

o
o

le
d

 l
ia

b
il

it
y 

d
iv

id
en

d

  
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 R

an
ch

 d
ep

o
si

ts

  
  

  
  

T
o

ta
l 

R
ec

ei
p

ts
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
3
8
,3

6
7

1
7
,1

7
6

F
u

n
d

 T
r
a

n
sf

e
r
s:

  
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s 
to

 U
n

io
n

 B
an

k
 O

&
M

(6
5

,6
4

5
)

(5
3

4
,3

5
5

)
6
0
0
,0

0
0

  
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s 
to

 U
n

io
n

 B
an

k
 P

R
(2

2
5
,0

0
0
)

2
2
5
,0

0
0

  
 T

ra
n

sf
er

 t
o

 D
ef

en
d

 o
r 

M
an

ag
ed

 R
et

re
at

 F
u

n
d

  
 I

n
tr

a-
fu

n
d

 t
ra

n
sf

er
s 

fo
r 

ca
p

it
al

 e
x

p
en

d
it

u
re

s

  
 R

eb
al

an
ce

 C
ap

it
al

 a
n

d
 O

&
M

 R
es

er
v
es

  
  

  
  

T
o

ta
l 

T
ra

n
sf

er
s

(6
5

,6
4

5
)

0
(5

3
4

,3
5

5
)

0
0

(6
0
0
,0

0
0
)

3
7
5
,0

0
0

2
2
5
,0

0
0

0

D
is

b
u

r
se

m
e
n

ts
:

  
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 c
ap

it
al

3
9
3
,8

6
8

  
 P

ay
ro

ll
 &

 p
ay

ro
ll

 t
ax

es
2
0
4
,1

7
3

  
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
D

en
ta

l 
re

im
b

u
rs

em
en

ts
3
,7

4
0

  
 C

A
L

P
E

R
S

 E
F

T
3
0
,6

3
2

  
 C

A
W

D
 S

A
M

 p
en

si
o

n
 E

F
T

 
0

  
 C

A
W

D
 p

en
si

o
n

 l
o

an
s 

E
F

T
0

  
 H

o
m

e 
D

ep
o

t 
E

F
T

1
5
0

  
 U

S
 B

an
k

 E
F

T
4
,0

2
3

  
 D

ef
er

re
d

 c
o

m
p

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

E
F

T
1
1
,0

5
8

  
 P

E
H

P
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
E

F
T

 
2
,8

8
6

  
 B

an
k

/A
D

P
 f

ee
s

5
9
0

4
8
7

  
 H

ig
h

la
n

d
s 

B
o

n
d

 D
eb

t 
S

er
v
ic

e 
P

ay
m

en
t

  
 A

n
n

u
al

 C
o

u
n

ty
 a

d
m

in
 b

il
li

n
g

 f
ee

  
 U

n
fu

n
d

ed
 C

A
L

P
E

R
S

 l
ia

b
il

it
y

  
 V

o
id

 d
ep

o
si

t 
ch

ec
k

-N
S

F

  
  

  
  

 T
o

ta
l 

D
is

b
u

rs
em

en
ts

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
3
3
,0

0
5

2
1
8
,6

0
4

0

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 E

N
D

 O
F

 M
O

N
T

H
7

,3
1

5
,0

2
9

1
2

,0
7

8
,1

2
5

6
,6

3
4

,6
3

3
2

0
9

,2
1

6
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
8
,2

3
7
,0

0
3

3
3
9
,6

0
6

1
1
7
,8

0
9

1
,1

7
2
,1

8
8

C
a

rm
el

 A
re

a
 W

a
st

ew
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

C
a

sh
 R

e
ce

ip
ts

 a
n

d
 D

is
b

u
rs

em
en

ts
 -

 O
C

T
O

B
E

R
 2

0
1

9

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 
 

 

STAFF REPORT     
 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 

 

DATE:            November 21, 2019   
         
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – October 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 

             

Permits Issued 

 

Sewer Lateral Permits issued in October         …..........................................                          46 

 

Total Fees     .......................................................................................................  $7,245.00 

 

 

Maintenance  

 

Attached is a map of the locations cleaned in past three months. There were 2,594 feet 

Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) sewer line inspections during the month of October.   

 

 

Cleaning period  Footage 

Cleaned 

Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned

October  41,702 ft.  10.14%  6 ‐ 12 inches 

October (Root Foam)  39,547 ft.  9.62%  6 – 8 inches 

September  41,086 ft.  9.99%  6 – 12 inches 

August  47,201 ft.  11.48%  6 – 15 inches 

 

 

40



 
 

Construction Activities 

 

 (Project 19‐17) Contractor started, the last week of October, the repair of the 

upper portion access road in Hatton Canyon State Park. This project consists of 

raising the road elevation and installing proper drainage ditches to get the 

rainwater off the road and prevent damage to the road during winter storms. 

 

Staff Development 

 

 Collection Staff attended a communication strategy workshop by Leapfrog 

Consulting on October 16th. Staff participated in on‐line Neuro‐Color test earlier 

in the month. The results were talked about at the workshop on how‐to best 

work with other styles of employees within the District. I received many positive 

remarks from staff about this workshop. 

 Staff from Collections and Maintenance attended the CSRMA Sewer Summit one 

day training on October 17th. Subjects covered were industry best practices, new 

regulations and safety training options for the industry. 

 Staff from Collections, Safety and Maintenance attended an on‐site Overflow 

Emergency Response Plan (OERP) spill estimation class on October 24th. Staff 

trained on spill volume estimating and spill reporting procedures. 

 CAWD staff was offered a free “lunch & learn” on October 25th on the 

advantages of polymer concrete vaults and manholes ‐vs‐ traditional cement 

concrete vaults and manholes.  

 Staff attended mandatory harassment training on October 31st.  

 

General Comments 

 

 CAWD’s annual root foaming was completed in October. The first‐year root 

foaming was in 2014 (year one) and we have now circled back to the year two 

route; three years later. The manufacture recommends a three‐year foam cycle for 

best root control. Staff chose the sewer lines that are being treated based on what 

cleaning and CCTV crews were seeing in the field during maintenance of the 

sewer lines. Staff has noticed fewer roots in the lines segments that have been 

treated and there have been no SSOs since treatment since began in 2014 on the 

line segments that have been foamed. Staff has been spot‐checking with CCTV 

inspection to ensure contact time of the foam and the decay of the roots that have 

been treated. Staff has been pleased with the treatment program and the progress 

that the District has made in managing the roots in the sewer lines. Staff worked 

41



 
 

closely with the treatment plant to ensure that there was no damage to the 

biological system of the plant. See map for areas that were treated.  

 CAWD has seen a sharp rise in plumbing permits issued, permit inspections and 

private sewer lateral compliance certificate issued in October. This increase is 

likely primarily due to the new Plumbing Ordinance that was approved by the 

Board in May. The District had a six‐month grace period starting in May and on 

October 1st began compliance enforcement. 

 CAWD took delivery of the new Hydro‐Vacuum truck on the last day of October. 

It will be on display for the Board on November 21. 

 Staff vacuumed out all the (Carmel‐By‐The Sea) CBTS interceptors and one storm 

drain basin, removing a total of 25.5 tons of debris. 

 

Service Calls Responded to by Crew 

Date  Time  Callout Resolution 

10/2/19  3:31 PM  Lateral Overflow  Called by the City for a lateral 

overflowing. Staff assisted in spill 

containment until plumber arrived to 

relive the blockage. 

10/3/19  2:00 PM  Loose drain cover   Called by business owner for a drain 

cover that was loose. Staff found a 

storm drain cover half off and 

notified the City for them to make 

repairs needed to properly seal. 

10/6/19  2:42 PM  High level alarm  Called to Highlands PS for a grinder 

high level. Staff found evidence of a 

backup, but problem had relived 

itself upon arrival. 

10/10/19  11:50 AM  Odor complaint  Called by homeowner for a report of 

sewer odor in home. Staff a cleaned 

in that area in the previous days 

possibly sucking the homes p‐traps 

dry. Informed owner to run water 

down the plumbing fixtures. 

10/15/19  8:53 PM  High level alarm  Called to 8th & Scenic PS for a high‐

level alarm. Staff found residual foam 

in the wet well. Staff washed down 

the foam causing the alarm to trigger.

42



 
 

Date  Time  Callout  Resolution 

10/16/19  1:00 PM  Cleanout locate  Called by realtor to help find 

properties cleanout. Staff was not 

able to locate a cleanout at that time. 

Cleanout has since been installed. 

10/23/19  1:17 PM  Odor Complaint  Staff was cleaning near by when 

approached by neighbor for a sewer 

odor. Staff located a lateral 

overflowing and informed the 

homeowner to call their plumber to 

relive the blockage.  

10/25/19  7:27 AM  Cleanout locate  Called by main office for a free lateral 

cleanout inspection that was 

advertised in Districts newsletter. 

Staff was able to locate the cleanout 

and informed the homeowner of its 

location. 

10/25/19  9:15 AM  Cleanout locate  Called by main office for a free lateral 

cleanout inspection that was 

advertised in Districts newsletter. 

Staff was not able to locate the 

cleanout and informed the 

homeowner to call a plumber of their 

choice to assist in finding cleanout. 

Staff will follow up with a letter. 

10/28/19  12:40 PM  Lateral overflow Staff noticed an overflowing lateral 

while cleaning. Staff informed the 

homeowner to call a plumber of their 

choice to relive the blockage. 

10/31/19  3:30 PM  Back up in home  Called by homeowner for a backup in

their house. Staff found no problems 

in District mainline. Informed owner 

to call a plumber of their choice. 

 

USA Location Requests – 122 

Plumbing permit inspections – 43 

Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 30    

43



11/4/2019

44

lauer
Text Box
October (Red)                               41,702 feetOctober - Root control (Orange)   39,547 feetSeptember (Yellow)                      41,086 feet                        Monthly Cleaning MapAugust (Green)                             47,201 feet



STAFF REPORT 
 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 

 

Date:    November 21, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Safety Report (for October 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Safety & Training 

 

 Oct 2‐ Tailgate training.  Mark Dias, Safety and Compliance Administrator (S/C 

Admin Dias), gave an overview of the upcoming job ergonomic assessments that 

the District will be undertaking.  Over the last two years several physical hazards 

(e.g., fall and chemical hazards) have been addressed at the plant. However back 

and joint injuries can occur at any time from performing routine tasks.  CAWD 

has contracted with an ergonomic assessment expert who will assess the 

essential duties of staff in each department. This expert specializes in wastewater 

treatment and collections. S/C Admin Dias explained how he will start with a list 

of typical wastewater tasks and then interview staff to determine if there are any 

tasks not on the list. He will also observe crews working in the field, and take 

load and lifting measurements. [Note: The results of the assessments will be 

available by the next Board meeting and an update will be provided at that time.]  

 

 Oct 9‐ Ergonomic and Back Safety Training. Don Freeman, an ergonomic expert, 

provided training to all CAWD staff on how back injuries occur and proper 

lifting techniques. He also helped staff gauge the weight of commonly lifted 

objects. This training is provided free of cost via CSRMA.  Mr. Freeman also 

began staff interviews for the ergonomic assessments (as discussed above). 

 

 

45



 Oct 16‐ Tailgate training.  S/C Admin Dias presented on updated (refined) 

procedures for air monitoring before confined space entries. S/C Admin Dias had 

updated the air monitoring forms that crews use before making an entry. The top 

five lines of the form are now prefilled to capture five initial readings; first, when 

the space is initially opened, then at multiple depths and finally any peak 

readings. While is recommended for all entries, the revised form will provide a 

visual cue to ensure this is systematically completed each time.   

 

 Oct 16‐ Tailgate training.  S/C Admin Dias presented on safe driving during dusk 

and dawn. With the annual time change and winter arriving, commutes to and 

from work will be during dusk and dawn hours. Several driving tips were listed 

and attendees added several more. 

 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 

During October, Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 

implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the 

Safety Committee. Many of the physical safety improvements are projects extending 

over weeks or months.  Activities in October included: 

 

 Contractor Safety Training.  Background. Cal OSHA regulations require that 

employers (i.e., CAWD) inform contractors of: (1) any unique hazards at our 

facilities; (2) our policies and procedures on lockout/tagout, confined space, 

hazardous chemicals, etc.; and, (3) our emergency evacuation and shelter‐in‐

place alarms and procedures. Past practice was to review a summarized list with 

the lead worker(s), have them sign the original and give them a copy. This is 

typical for the industry. However, if a contractor’s worker was to be injured, they 

could argue that the District’s list was too vague or that the injury occurred 

because they were not made aware of the particular hazard that contributed to 

the injury. Because of the several dozen hazards on site, a full orientation/tour 

would take at least 90 minutes and some hazards could be overlooked on a given 

day. Also, the hazards might be explained in an inconsistent way or be 

misinterpreted. More importantly, even a thorough orientation would not 

prevent an injured party from retroactively claiming they were not fully 

informed. Update. To address this industry‐wide issue, CSRMA worked with 

DKF Solutions to develop an online “Contractor Safety Orientation Module.” The 

contractor/owner or their authorized representative (e.g. a supervisor who has 

authority to direct their workers) must complete the module and acknowledge 

they are aware of the hazards and our policies. The module has ten sections that 

systematically covers eighteen safety topics specific to the CAWD plant (e.g., our 

bulk chemicals, digester gas system, respiratory hazards, noise, infectious 

46



diseases, lockout/tagout, evacuation, etc.) Each section must be completed, in 

succession, before they can access the next section. There are also several quizzes 

that must be correctly answered before they can proceed to the next section. Most 

importantly, CAWD will receive documentation that the contractor has been 

trained and that they signed an acknowledgement of the hazards. This will also 

be an excellent training tool to inform new employees or interns of worksite 

hazards. 

The majority of the costs to develop the module will be reimbursed via 

CSRMA’s Safety funds. CAWD is just the third agency out of 60 CSRMA 

members to implement this module statewide. We are the first of any mid to 

small sized agency to implement the module.  

 

 Bulk aqueous ammonia system repairs.  Background; as described in previous 

reports, CAWD receives bulk deliveries of 19% aqueous ammonia approximately 

once per month. The bulk tank is outdoors at the tertiary building with 

permanent secondary containment. New gas monitoring equipment showed that 

ammonia vapors were escaping out of the tank lid during the filling process.  

Operations staff have consistently been required to wear respirators during 

deliveries. Until the system is improved, an Interim Operating Procedure (IOP) 

was promulgated.  Per the IOP staff are required to remotely monitor the tank 

level at a safe distance using the wireless SCADA system rather than stand near 

the tank during filling. CAWD staff intended to retrofit the piping and venting 

rather than purchase a replacement system. A pressure gauge was installed to 

measure pressures during filling. During a delivery the gauge showed that the 

tank lid essentially held zero pressure and ammonia levels were still high. A 

new, non‐vented lid was installed in March. The system still would not hold 

pressure and both the lid and the pressure gauge were leaking. In July the lid 

was reinstalled using a new ammonia resistant sealant along with a diaphragm‐

isolated gauge. This was a major improvement. Air monitoring showed 0.0 PPM 

of ammonia around the tank and piping. Follow up monitoring showed the 

system also held all vapors during warm afternoons (when daily off‐gassing 

peaks). During a delivery there were two unexplained short‐term gas spikes. In 

August the leak location was narrowed down a leak somewhere in the piping. In 

September the vapor leak location was pinpointed to the temporary hose 

connection between the truck hose and CAWD’s venting piping. Update: In 

October a new stainless‐steel connection point was installed. The integrity of the 

seal will be tested during the next delivery (November). Overall, the tank system 

continues to hold pressure. A retrofit of the system is not indicated at this time. 

Monthly tracking continuing. 

 

47



 

Tours and Outreach 

No tours were requested in October.   

 

 

Injuries; first aid responses; worker compensation claims 

There were no First Aid or Worker Comp incidents in October.  The latest matrix is 

below. 

 

  Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2019 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  

Incidents 

(Month) 

Total  

Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 

from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 

Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 

lost  

(Year) 

OSHA 

Injuries 
0  0  0  0  0 

OSHA 

Illnesses 
0  0  0  0  0 

Other WC 

Claims 
0  1  0  0  0 

First Aid 

(non‐OSHA) 
0  6  0  0  0 

 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

48



% of Total MG

68.086 275.39

31.914 145.15

100.00 420.54

87.007 248.24

12.667 173.67

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 1568.27 1725.97 N/A

2344.93 2255.78 2283.22 N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Reduced power production due to the Micro-Turbine off line for modification of exhaust piping
(3) No PG&E statements available at the time the Board Report was due

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

#VALUE! 54,251.84$  

2019

N/A (3)

2164.89

N/A (3)

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.044

0.201

1290.00

8.16 BG (25.04 B acre-ft.)

1.185

844.75

761.47

0.000

Aug'19

445.25

532.73

0.000

307.24 MG (942.91 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.039

0.816

Sept'19

0.380

N/A (3)

N/A (3)

N/A (3)

37,231.92$  

26,228.72$                           

16,105.51$  

N/A (3) 40,675.90$                           

N/A (3)

COMMENTS

MF/RO

248.24MG (761.85acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

38,146.33$  

12,091.11$                           

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: October 

2019

29.845

0.140

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

8,792

Jul'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

35,581.07$                           

N/A (3)

N/A (3)

N/A (3)

39,315.71$                           

Aug'19

10,725.36$  

126.77$                                 

19,514.70$                           

751,466.00

19,641.47$                           

9,352.35$                              

6,086

Jul'19

11,211

2 QTR

19,963.18$                           

Sept'19Oct '19 KWh 

60,639.08$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

11,083

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.715 0.805

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.947

34.302

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

4.345

CAWD Total          

26,506.56$  

0.324

Oct'19

0.000

0.75423.355

Monthly Totals

1.107

0.353

0.116

0.963

Oct '19 kWh

N/A (3)

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

#VALUE!

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

N/A (3)

CAWD Total

CAWD 1770.27

27,224.60$                           

N/A (3)

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

N/A (3)

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals 

49



Month

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Jul 19

Aug 19

Sep 19

Oct 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

50



% of Total MG

69.252 252.04

30.748 134.20

100.00 386.24

82.663 218.40

12.218 169.32

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 1568.27 1725.97 N/A

2344.93 2255.78 2283.22 N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

CAWD 1770.27

26,228.72$                           

10,725.36$  

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

26,506.56$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals 

0.192$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

182,398.60

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.210$            

CAWD Total

Sept'19

0.000

0.76823.040

Monthly Totals

1.109

0.341

0.112

0.917

Sept '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.230

33.270

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

4.065

CAWD Total          

27,224.60$  

0.311

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.729 0.892

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

11,083

Jun'19

10,409

2 QTR

19,514.70$                           

Aug'19Sept '19 KWh 

19,641.47$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

8,792

Jul'19

12,091.11$  

27,347.31$                           

18,627.98$                           

745,380.00

45,975.29$                           

9,165.27$                              

11,211

Jun'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

33,355.65$                           

116,529.00

126,401.00

75,464.92

35,581.07$                           

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: 

September 2019

27.502

0.136

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

COMMENTS

MF/RO

218.40MG (670.26acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

40,675.90$  

9,352.35$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh

38,146.33$  

0.204$            

55,997.60

39,315.71$  37,231.92$  

24,190.38$                           

19,963.18$  

0.213$            126.77$                                 

16,105.51$  

Jul'19

411.67

519.40

0.000

306.09 MG (939.38 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.040

0.780

Aug'19

0.397

1.103

0.171

1184.78

8.13 BG (24.95 B acre-ft.)

1.289

773.11

669.92

0.000

68,630.92$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

191,993.92 54,251.84$  60,639.08$  

2019

22,852.84$                              

2164.89

51



Month

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Jul 19

Aug 19

Sep 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

52



% of Total MG

70.174 229.00

29.826 123.97

100.00 352.97

82.894 190.89

11.291 165.26

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 1568.27 N/A N/A

2344.93 2255.78 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation percentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Micro-Turbine production low due to new exhaust piping installation for the new 65kW Micro-Turbine

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

208,170.48 60,639.08$  19,641.47$  

2019

24,069.03$                              

2164.89

75,885.76$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.111

0.156

1082.72

8.11 BG (24.88 B acre-ft.)

1.340

702.44

585.56

0.000

Jun'19

380.29

506.93

0.000

307.67 MG (944.24 acre-ft.)

0.000

0.921

0.808

Jul'19

0.424

40,675.90$  

0.193$            

60,625.68

35,581.07$  39,315.71$  

23,692.08$                           

19,514.70$  

0.212$            27,347.31$                           

19,963.18$  

COMMENTS

MF/RO

190.89MG (585.85acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

126.77$        

9,165.27$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh (2)

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: August 

2019

30.335

0.133

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

10,409

May'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

32,193.52$                           

113,964.00

142,658.00

94,206.48

33,355.65$                           

Jun'19

9,352.35$     

21,568.26$                           

18,248.09$                           

734,297.00

39,816.35$                           

8,501.44$                              

8,792

May'19

0

2 QTR

18,627.98$                           

Jul'19Aug '19 KWh 

45,975.29$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

11,211

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report                          

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.614 0.916

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.915

36.595

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

4.132

CAWD Total          

26,228.72$  

0.307

Aug'19

0.000

0.82825.680

Monthly Totals

1.180

0.352

0.107

0.979

Aug '19 kWh

0.199$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

203,283.68

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.191$            

CAWD Total

CAWD 1770.27

24,190.38$                           

12,091.11$  

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

27,224.60$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

53



Month

Sep 18

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Jul 19

Aug 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19 Aug 19

Total Golf Course Usage Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

54



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Ray De Ocampo 

Laboratory/Environmental Compliance 

Supervisor 

 

Date:    November 21, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report – October 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; No action required 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

LABORATORY REPORT 

 The results for CAWD Final Effluent Semi‐Annual sampling in September had a 

violation for the analyte, Hexachlorobenzene (HCB). The permit limit is 0.026 

ug/L and the result was 0.11 ug/L.  Mr. De Ocampo contacted the contract 

laboratory to verify the analysis and to check for possible error.  The contract 

laboratory verified the result was accurate and there was no sample remaining to 

perform a rerun.  

 

Hexachlorobenzene is no longer used as a pesticide/fungicide but can be formed 

as a byproduct of other manufacturing industrial chemicals. HCB is a known 

impurity in several pesticide formulations.  CAWD Lab/SC staff are going to be 

investigating possible sources of HCB.  The lab staff will follow up by collecting 

samples from the following locations; CAWD Final Effluent, the four 

brine/botanical hauling trucks that come to the facility to discharge, and a sample 

collected from the Pebble Beach Community Service District collection system 

main line. The Laboratory will have these samples tested for semi‐volatile 

compounds (EPA625) which includes HCB.  

 

 On October 8, 2019, Maintenance Superintendent Foley notified Mr. De Ocampo 

that the lab power would be shut down for a short time for PG&E to do some 

electrical panel work.  When the power was restored to the laboratory it was 

55



noticed that the Eaton battery backup system for the laboratory server fell to a 

low level which in turn caused the system to shut down.  Mr. Foley investigated 

the problem and performed another simulation with the laboratory power 

shutdown and found that the battery system life is nearing its life expectancy 

and due for replacement this budget year.  Mr. Foley contacted Eaton to schedule 

a service date. 

 

 The dry season sampling for Central Coast Long‐Term Assessment Network 

(CCLEAN) on CAWD Final Effluent had occurred from September 25, 2019 to 

October 30, 2019.   

 

 On October 16, 2019, Lab staff attended the Neuro Color Personality Assessment 

meeting. 

 

 On October 28, 2019 Mr. De Ocampo and Mr. Young attended the Fred Pryor 

Supervisor training class in Monterey. 

 

 On October 31, 2019, Lab staff attended Sexual Harassment Training, and Mr. De 

Ocampo attended the supervisory training at the main office. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 Brophy’s Tavern was non‐compliant with excessive grease greater than 2 inches 

of accumulation. Warning was given on October 1, 2019.  The follow up 

inspection was compliant. 

 

 Lugano Swiss Bistro was non‐compliant with excessive grease greater than 2 

inches of accumulation. Warning was given on October 1, 2019.  The follow up 

inspection was compliant. 

 

 On October 25, 2019, Mr. De Ocampo attend the Armorock presentation on H2S 

gases and their manhole product set up by the Collections Superintendent. 

 

 Mountain Mikes is under new management and both grease traps are currently 

being replumbed for proper usage. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



Restaurant Inspection Table 

 

Restaurant  Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

Brophy’s Tavern  No  Excessive grease  Follow‐up inspection 

needed. Follow up was 

compliant. 

La Playa Hotel  Yes     

Robata Grill  Yes     

Lugano Swiss Bistro  No  Excessive grease  Follow‐up inspection 

needed. Follow up was 

compliant. 

Hanagasa  Yes     

Wedgewood Wedding 

Banquet 

Yes     

Portabella  Yes     

The Mediterranean  Yes     

Mountain Mike Pizza      Under new management, 

no kitchen changes, 

remodeling interior 

design. 

       

 

 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 

 

Grocery 

Store/Delicatessen 

 

Compliant 

Reason for

Non‐

Compliance 

 

 

Comments 

None   

 

 

Restaurant Compliance Table 

% Compliance  Maintenance Mechanical 

August 2019  99%  100% 

September 2019  99%  100% 

October 2019  100%  99% 

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

 

57



ID Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost Status

0 Projects Implementation Plan 
Schedule

Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $23,486,000.00

1 Treatment Plant Projects Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $15,009,000.00

2 18-01 Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge 
Holding Tank Replacement Project

Treanor Mon 4/30/18 Thu 11/4/21 $10,150,000.00 100% Design

8 18-02 Ops Building Historian and 
Reporting

Foley Mon 4/2/18 Tue 12/31/19 $140,000.00 In Progress

12 18-03 CMMS Improvements (Ops 
Rounds)

Foley Wed 7/11/18 Fri 1/31/20 $100,000.00 Conceptualizing Tablet
Data Entry for Ops Rounds

15 18-09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab Waggoner Thu 7/5/18 Fri 8/30/19 $250,000.00 Punchlist/Closeout

19 18-05 PLC/SCADA Programming 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Foley Mon 10/8/18 Tue 7/13/21 $300,000.00 Ongoing Programming
Work

30 18-08 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor Mon 10/8/18 Fri 10/23/20 $730,000.00 Design

36 18-07 Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging 
and Cleaning

Treanor/Young Fri 3/15/19 Fri 3/6/20 $125,000.00 Bid/Award

43 18-11 Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley Tue 6/4/19 Tue 6/30/20 $510,000.00 Pre-Design / Testing

48 19-01 Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Mon 6/29/20 $100,000.00 Implementation

49 19-10 1 Water Corrosion Control Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Fri 6/12/20 $30,000.00 Pilot Test Ionization System

50 18-28 Perimeter Tree Plan and 
Implementation

Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/30/26 $120,000.00 Planning Study

51 19-18 Plant Fence Replacement Foley Mon 12/2/19 Tue 7/20/21 $150,000.00 Bid Document Prep

55 19-19 Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20 Waggoner Mon 3/2/20 Tue 6/30/20 $140,000.00 Planning

58 Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Mon 2/3/20 Fri 1/29/21 $30,000.00 Inactive

59 Cart Charging and Parking Foley Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $50,000.00 Inactive

60 Operations Bldg Basement 
Renovation

Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $50,000.00 Inactive

61 Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 3/29/22 $50,000.00 Inactive

62 Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery 
Repairs

Treanor Fri 1/1/21 Mon 3/29/21 $44,000.00 Inactive

65 Lagoon Crossing Rehabilitation Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Fri 5/30/25 $300,000.00 Inactive

66 RAS Pump/Piping Rehab Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $0.00 Inactive

67 Lunch Room MCC Replace with 
Panelboard

Foley Wed 6/1/22 Thu 11/3/22 $140,000.00 Inactive

70 Treatment Plant Studies & O&M 
Manuals

Treanor Fri 6/28/19 Wed 7/24/24 $270,000.00

71 19-14 BioWin Modeling Treanor Fri 6/28/19 Wed 3/4/20 $50,000.00 Model Development in
Progress

72 Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor Fri 11/1/19 Tue 9/1/20 $35,000.00 Inactive

73 Life Expectancy Analysis Treanor Wed 9/2/20 Fri 7/2/21 $35,000.00 Inactive

74 Online O&M Manual Treanor Wed 9/1/21 Wed 7/24/24 $150,000.00 Inactive

75 Reclamation Projects Wed 5/9/18 Tue 6/1/21 $1,230,000.00

76 18-24 Reclamation Sand Filter 
Integration Project

Waggoner Wed 5/9/18 Sun 6/30/19 $100,000.00 Troubleshooting Sand Filter
Startup

82 18-26 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 
Containment

Treanor Fri 6/8/18 Wed 5/13/20 $415,000.00 On Hold / Permitting

Treatment Plant Projects

Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project

Ops Building Historian and Reporting

CMMS Improvements (Ops Rounds)

Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab

PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Standby Power Reliability Project

Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and Cleaning

Microturbine Integration Project

Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

1 Water Corrosion Control

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Plant Fence Replacement

Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20

Cathodic Protection Testing

Cart Charging and Parking

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, DrainaPlant Paving, Vault Lids, Draina

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs

RAS PuRAS Pu

Lunch R

Treatment Plant Stud

BioWin Modeling

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Life Expectancy Analysis

Reclamation Projects

Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

58



ID Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost Status

87 18-25 EQ Basin Pump 
Electrical/Mechanical

Foley Mon 10/8/18 Mon 9/30/19 $80,000.00 Completed

88 19-12 MF/RO Sound Barriers Treanor Mon 7/29/19 Fri 12/27/19 $80,000.00 Building Sound Enclosure

89 19-16 Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Fri 4/3/20 $350,000.00 Pre-Design

90 19-15 MF Feed Pipe Replacement Treanor Mon 11/4/19 Fri 4/3/20 $30,000.00 Procurement

91 Reclamation Line Cathodic 
Protection Testing

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $25,000.00 Inactive

92 Painting Project Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $75,000.00 Inactive

93 Reclamation Studies Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/1/21 $75,000.00

94 Trussell MF/RO Performance Review Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 3/31/20 $40,000.00 In Study Phase

95 Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management 
Assessment

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 6/1/21 $35,000.00 Inactive

96 Collections Projects Mon 4/16/18 Tue 6/11/24 $8,477,000.00

97 19-02 Pretreatment Ordinance Lather Fri 11/15/19 Fri 3/13/20 $0.00 Inactive

98 18-16 Highlands H2S Control Lauer Mon 4/16/18 Mon 9/30/19 $0.00 Running Bioxide and
Planning Air Injection

100 18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting Lather Wed 5/23/18 Thu 10/15/20 $1,450,000.00 Re-Bid in January 2020 /
Grant Has Been Approved

101 19-17 Hatton Canyon Road Maintenance Lather Mon 8/26/19 Sat 11/30/19 $298,000.00 Construction

102 18-18 Pump Station PLC/SCADA 
Replacement

Foley/Lather Wed 7/18/18 Thu 2/13/20 $600,000.00 Procurement

103 19-03 Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer 
Improvements

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Wed 6/30/21 $1,294,000.00 Preliminary Design

104 19-11 Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer 
Replacement

Lather Thu 5/30/19 Thu 11/7/19 $150,000.00 Closeout

105 19-07 Rio Road CIPP Lining Project Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 8/28/20 $1,340,000.00 Design

106 18-29 September Ranch Water and 
Sewer

Lather Fri 3/1/19 Fri 7/30/21 $0.00 Study

110 19-13 Upper Rancho Canada Upsize Line Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 2/2/24 $1,500,000.00 Design / CEQA

111 18-27 Highlands FM ARVs Lauer Wed 7/1/20 Wed 10/14/20 $60,000.00 Inactive

112 Highlands FM Flushing Lauer Wed 7/1/20 Mon 11/30/20 $75,000.00 Inactive

116 Rancho Canada New Development 
Line

Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00 Inactive

117 Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $105,000.00

118 19-09 2019 Mass Annexation Lather Fri 3/15/19 Mon 1/6/20 $50,000.00 CEQA

119 18-21 Corona Road Assessment District Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00 Circulating Petition

120 19-05 Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00 On Hold

121 19-08 Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $0.00 In Design By Owner

122 19-04 Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands 
Extension

Lather Mon 5/6/19 Thu 1/9/20 $55,000.00 On Hold

123 Collections Studies / Reports Lauer/Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 7/17/20 $105,000.00

124 Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM 
Assessment

Lauer/Lather Mon 2/3/20 Fri 7/17/20 $75,000.00 Inactive

125 19-06 Collection System SSMP Lauer/Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 11/29/19 $30,000.00 In Development

EQ Basin Pump Electrical/Mechanical

MF/RO Sound Barriers

Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power

MF Feed Pipe Replacement

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing

Painting Project

Reclamation Studies

Trussell MF/RO Performance Review

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessme

Collections Projects

Pretreatment Ordinance

Highlands H2S Control

Hatton Canyon Pipe BurstingHatton Canyon Pipe Bursting

Hatton Canyon Road MaintenanceHatton Canyon Road Maintenance

Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvements

Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer Replacement

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project

September Ranch Water and Sewer

Upper Rancho Canada

Highlands FM ARVs

Highlands FM Flushing

Rancho Canada N

Assessment Districts/Annexations

2019 Mass Annexation

Corona Road Assessment District

Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer

Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension

Collections Studies / Reports

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment

Collection System SSMP

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

59



 

 
Photo: Existing Headworks Motor Control Center to Be 

Replaced in Project 
   
Project Name:  WWTP ‐ Elec/Mech Rehab & Sludge 

Holding Tank Replacement Project 

Project 
Location: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project 
Manager: 

Treanor 

Project Number:  18‐01 

Status:  In 90% Design Phase 

Project 
Description 

The WWTP Rehabilitation Phase II Project 
is a multi‐area project at the WWTP 
aimed at mitigating risk of failure in the 
Influent Pump Station, Headworks, 
3W/Chlorine Analyzer Building, Effluent 
Building and Sludge Storage Tank. Most of 
the work involves replacing aged electrical 
and mechanical equipment in existing 
buildings. 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $9,150,000   
Actual to Date: $735,670                  

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 4% of project cost. Actual 
share TBD based on Construction Costs. 

Other Entities:  Pebble Beach Community Services 
District, CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation 
Project 

Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Development Permit 

Challenges:  Coastal Commission 

Schedule:   Design to be completed in 2019  

 Construction anticipated for 2020 
through 2021 

Consultants:  Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (Design 
Engineer) 

Contractor:  TBD 

 

 

Photo: Existing Server Hardware that will be replaced in 
Project 

 
Project Name:  Ops Building Historian and Reporting

Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant

Project Manager:  Foley 

Project Number:  18‐02 

Status:  In procurement phase.

Project 
Description 

The report writer and historian system 
provide historical data for compliance and 
process reports. The existing system is 
connected to the legacy Supervisory 
Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
system. This project will update the 
reporting hardware and software and 
integrate the system with the updated 
SCADA system.  

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $77,245   
Actual to Date:  $36,503                  

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 50%. 

Schedule:   Design to be completed in 2019  

 Report and Historian configuration to 
be completed by June 2020.  

Consultants:  Worksmart Automation

Contractor:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60



 

 

 

Photo: Mainsaver CMMS Dashboard 

   
Project Name:  Computerized Maintenance Management 

Software (CMMS) Improvements  
Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project Manager:  Foley 

Project Number:  18‐03 

Status:  Final Testing Phase 

Project 
Description 

The CMMS system tracks work orders, 
assets and inspections for the treatment 
plant and reclamation facility. Staff 
perform inspections of the equipment and 
currently write down the data and then 
double enter into the computer system. 
This project will update the software to 
the latest version and provide a new 
mobile module so that inspection rounds 
and work orders can be completed in the 
field saving duplicate data entry and 
providing information to staff while in 
front of the equipment. This will reduce 
errors in data entry and improve efficiency 
by providing staff with improved resources 
when inspecting and maintaining 
equipment.  
  

Department:   Maintenance 

Budget Status:  Budget: $100,000   
Actual to Date: $94,036                  

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 50%. 

Schedule:   Completion in Spring of 2020.  

Consultants:  JB System DBA Mainsaver  

Contractor:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: DAFT SCADA Overview 
 
Project Name:  Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) and 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 
(SCADA) Programming Project 
 

Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project Manager:  Foley 

Project Number:  18‐05 

Status:  In progress 

Project Description  During the phase 1 project a new SCADA 
software package from Inductive 
Automation was installed in parallel with 
the existing system. This project includes 
the migration of the remaining SCADA 
screens from the legacy system to the new 
system. The PLC code is also being updated 
to the CAWD standards that are being 
developed during this project. This project is 
necessary to replace obsolete software and 
hardware so that the automated controls, 
alarms and reporting remain accurate and 
reliable.  
  

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $300,000 
Actual to Date: $160,281                    

Reclamation Share:  Partial Reclamation  

Schedule:   Existing SCADA to be migrated in 2020 

 SCADA screens will be revised for 
equipment that is replaced during 
Mechanical and Electrical 
Rehabilitation Project   

Consultants:  Informative Controls 

Contractor:  N/A 

 

 

61



Photo: Digester No. 1 
   
Project Name:  Digester No. 1 & Old Digester No. 2 

Purging and Cleaning 
Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project Manager:  Treanor 

Project Number:  18‐07 

Status:  Bid/Award 

Project 
Description 

Digester No. 1 hasn’t been cleaned in 
19‐years. Rule of thumb would be to 
clean every 10 years. A contractor 
will clean Digester No. 1 which is 
anticipated to have a considerable 
unknown amount of debris buildup 
in the digester. After cleaning 
Digester No. 1 will remain offline 
until rehabilitation can occur. Old 
Digester No. 2 is planned to be 
demolished. Old Digester No. 2 will 
be drained by staff as it will not have 
debris buildup because it was a 
Secondary Digester (Treating 
supernatant from Digester No. 1).  
 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $257,250 
Actual to Date: $0                 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities:  N/A 

Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges:  Unknown quantity of debris in 
Digester No. 1 

Schedule:   Work to occur in Fall/Winter 
2019 

Consultants:  N/A 

Contractor:  TBD 

 

Photo: Example Trailer Standby Generator 
   
Project Name:  Standby Power Reliability Project

Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant

Project Manager:  Treanor 

Project Number:  18‐08 

Status:  In 50% Design Phase

Project 
Description 

This project involves purchasing a 
trailer mounted 750kW generator to 
serve as a full capacity backup to the 
existing standby system in case the 
existing 750kW generator were to fail. 
The Main Switchgear would be 
reprogrammed to run off one 
generator with a standby (instead of 
the current split bus system). This 
would allow removal of the existing 
450kW generator (which has obsolete 
controls and is not capable of 
powering the entire WWTP if the 
750kW were to fail during a power 
outage). 
 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $730,000 
Actual to Date: $800.00            

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities:  N/A 

Permits Required:  Air Board Permit 

Challenges:  N/A 

Schedule:   Design to be completed in 2019  

 Construction anticipated for 2020 

Consultants:  Beecher Engineering

Contractor:  TBD 

62



 

Photo: Secondary Clarifier after new coating was 
applied. 

   
Project Name:  Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Coating 

Rehabilitation  

Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project Manager:  Foley 

Project Number:  18‐09 

Status:  Construction Complete and 
Punchlist items in progress 

Project 
Description 

This project will replace the 
secondary clarifier No. 1 
mechanical equipment and bridge 
with new unit components. The 
metal components will be abrasive 
blasted and then coated.  As part 
of the replacement updated 
controls will allow improved 
process control of the skimming 
arm speed.  

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $250,000 
Actual to Date: $281,137       

Reclamation 
Share: 

0% 

Schedule:   Construction complete in 
summer of 2019 

 Asset will be placed back in 
service in fall of 2019  

Consultants:  None 

Contractor:  ERS Industrial, Rebuild‐It  

 

 

Photo: Existing Gas Conditioning System 
   
Project Name:  Microturbine Integration Project

Project 
Location: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Project 
Manager: 

Treanor/Foley 

Project 
Number: 

18‐11

Status:  In Pre‐Design Phase 

Project 
Description 

Replacement of existing gas conditioning 
equipment and additional upgrades to 
the Microturbine system to integrate the 
new 60 kW turbine. The gas compressor 
failed this year and is being replaced. 
The gas conditioning system has many 
components that are in poor condition 
and therefore it may be more cost 
effective to build a complete package 
system instead of continuing to fix minor 
components and have extended outages 
of the microturbine energy production 
due to component failures. Going with a 
new package system would be an 
improvement over the existing system 
which is not integrated. Also, a new gas 
conditioning system could be sized so 
that the microturbines could operate at 
maximum production given that a larger 
60kW generator was installed recently.  
 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $510,000 
Actual to Date: $12,362               

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A

Other Entities:  N/A

Permits 
Required: 

Air Board Permit, Coastal Commission 
Immaterial Amendment 

Challenges:  N/A

Schedule:   Pre‐Design to be completed in 
2019/2020 

 Final Design to be completed in 
2020/2021‐Construction anticipated 
for 2021 

Consultants:  Engine System Integrated 

Contractor:  TBD 

 
63



 

Photo: View H2S damage to Calle La Cruz wet well 
   

Project Name:  H2S Control at Calle La Cruz 
Pump Station  

Project Location:  Collection System 

Project Manager:  Lauer 

Project Number:  18‐16 

Status:  Testing  

Project Description  H2S gasses are causing damage 
to the wet well and are a health 
hazard.  H2S readings of 
700ppm have been observed. 
Staff have tried several different 
products and found CN‐9 
(Calcium Nitrate) to work. 
Working on dosage.  

Department:  Collections 

Budget Status:  Budget: $0 
Actual to Date: $0 

Permits Required:  N/A 

Challenges:  Getting the right dosage to 
remove odor.  Dealing with 
source of problem. 

Schedule:   
Contractor:   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: View of a temporary repair of a manhole in 
Hatton Canyon 

   
Project Name:  Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting  

Project Location:  Collection System 
Project Manager:  Lather 

Project Number:  18‐17 

Status:  Bids opened 07‐25‐19. 
FEMA/OES award received after 
deadline to construct in 2019. 
Plan to re‐bid in spring 2020. 

Project 
Description 

Replace 5,570 linear ft. of 60‐year 
old 8” vitrified clay, bell & spigot 
pipeline within Hatton Canyon, 
Experienced over 3 spills in past 20 
years due to flooding.  Replace 
with 10” butt welded HDPE pipe 
that will be watertight & anchored 
into upgraded manholes. 

Department:  Collection 
Budget Status:  Budget: $1,450,000 

Bid: $1,038,000 
Actual to Date: $265,861 

 

Other Entities:  State Parks; Fish & Wildlife, Army 
Corps, FEMA, CalOES 

Permits 
Required: 

State Parks Easement, Army Corps, 
U.S. Fish & Wildlife, State Fish & 
Wildlife, and Monterey County 
Encroachment Permit. 

Challenges:  The project is located in a State 
Parks easement along the west 
bank of Hatton Creek.  Existing 
access road is surrounded by 
riparian habitat. 

Schedule:  Work required to be completed 
between June – October.  Plan to 
construct project in 2020. 

 

 

 

64



 

Photo: Pump station Control Panel‐ PLC and Operator 
Interface will be upgraded at Pump stations. 

   
Project Name:  Pump Station PLC/SCADA 

Replacement   

Project Location:  Collections Pump Stations

Project Manager:  Foley 

Project Number:  18‐18 

Status:  Design Complete and Control 
Panel Assembly in Progress 

Project Description  This project will replace the 
obsolete Programmable Logic 
Controllers at 7 sewage pump 
station. The PLC programming 
will be updated, and the 
Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition Visualization 
screens will be updated to the 
Ignition SCADA software.   

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $600,000  
Actual to Date: $330,737    

Reclamation Share:  0% 

Schedule:   Construction complete in 
Fall of 2019 
 

Consultants:  Frisch Engineering 

Contractor:  Technical Systems, Inc  

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation  
   
Project Name:  Assessment District/Annexations

Project Location:  Collection System

Project Manager:  Lather 

Project Number:  19‐04, ‐05, ‐08, ‐09, 18‐21

Status:  Developing CEQA Documents

Project Description:  The project will provide the 
opportunity for homes and 
businesses to get off septic 
systems and add approximately 
350 connections to the District at 
build‐out.  Interested areas 
include Corona Road, Riley 
Ranch, Carmel Valley Manor and 
Yankee Point. 

Department:  Collections 

Budget Status:  Budget: $50,000
Actual to Date: $9,088 

Permits Required:  Environmental Review, LAFCO 
Approval 

Challenges:  Getting homeowner groups to 
form an Assessment District to 
pay for infrastructure needed to 
connect to our sewer system. 

Schedule:  Complete Environmental Review 
by December 2019 and LAFCO 
Annexation in February 2020. 
 

Consultant:  Denise Duffy & Associates

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

65



 

 

 

Photo: Existing Coagulation/Flocculation System and 
Sand Filters 

   
Project Name:  Reclamation Sand Filter 

Rehabilitation 

Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Reclamation Project 

Project Manager:  Ed Waggoner 

Project Number:  18‐24 

Status:  In 95% Construction/Maintenance 
Phase 

Project Description  The Coagulation/Flocculation and 
Sand Filter equipment was 
bypassed and taken offline in 2008 
once the Microfiltration and 
Reverse Osmosis Project started 
operation. These systems are being 
Rehabilitated and returned to 
service to provide pretreatment 
and phosphorous removal to allow 
more flow recovery on the Reverse 
Osmosis System. 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $60,000.00 
Actual to Date: $31,000 

 

Reclamation Share:  100% of project cost.  

Other Entities:  CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project

Permits Required:  No Permits required as project is a 
maintenance project 

Challenges:  Age of mothballed equipment.

Schedule:   Design to be completed in 2018 

 Maintenance anticipated for 
Fall of 2019 

Consultants:  In house (Design Plant Engineer)

Contractor:  In house staff 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Photo: Equalization Basin Variable Frequency Drives 
   
Project Name:  EQ Basin Pump Electrical/Mechanical

Project 
Location: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Project 
Manager: 

Foley 

Project 
Number: 

18‐25 

Status:  Complete 

Project 
Description 

The equalization basin is utilized to store 
influent flow in order to provide more 
consistent flow to the reclamation 
facility since influent flows vary greatly 
during a 24‐hour period. This project will 
install a second redundant pump and 
replace the obsolete controls with two 
new variable frequency drives. This 
project will improve reliability and 
operation of the basin.  

Department:  Reclamation  

Budget Status:  Budget: $80,000  
Actual to Date: $73,373        

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 100%. 

Schedule:   Design to be completed in 2019  

 Report and Historian configuration 
to be completed by June 2020.  

Consultants:  Informative Controls

Contractor:  Mailey Electric 

 

 

66



 

 

Photo: Existing totes used for Sulfuric Acid storage and 
Feed  

   
Project 
Name: 

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 
Containment 

Project 
Location: 

Reclamation – MF/RO 

Project 
Manager: 

Treanor 

Project 
Number: 

18‐26 

Status:  On Hold 

Project 
Description 

Code compliance upgrades for existing 
acid chemical storage and feed system 
used by Reclamation for enhancing RO 
recovery. Project includes code compliant 
secondary containment and separation of 
dissimilar chemicals.   
       
       

Department:  Treatment 

Budget 
Status: 

Budget: $290,000  
Actual to Date: $68,506            

 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100% 

Other 
Entities: 

Reclamation Project 

Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Development Permit 

Challenges:  N/A 

Schedule:   On hold for Coastal Commission 
 

Consultants:  Trussell Technologies, Inc 

Contractor:  TBD 

 

 

 

 
Photo: Eucalyptus trees on South Side of Treatment 

Plant 
   
Project Name:  Perimeter Tree Plan and 

Implementation 

Project 
Location: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Project 
Manager: 

Treanor 

Project 
Number: 

18‐28 

Status:  In Study Phase 

Project 
Description 

Planning and landscaping around the 
treatment plant.  This will include 
looking into possibly replacing the non‐
native eucalyptus trees around the 
perimeter of the treatment plant with 
native tree species.  The project will 
start with a study and plan to determine 
costs, sequencing schedule, and visual 
impacts.      
       
   

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $120,000 
Actual to Date: $0                 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A

Other Entities:  N/A

Permits 
Required: 

Currently unknown 

Challenges:  Time it will take for new trees to grow 
up that will fully screen treatment plant 
from view 

Schedule:   Study to occur in 2019 
 

Consultants:  Scott Hall Landscape Design

Contractor:  TBD 

 

 

 

67



 

Photo: View new home development  
   
Project Name:  September Ranch Subdivision 

Project 
Location: 

Collection and Water System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Project 
Number: 

18‐29 

Status:  Study 

Project 
Description 

New Subdivision with sewer and 
water services.  CAWD is completing 
review of water system design, 
operations, and rates in order to 
decide if it is feasible to accept the 
water system. 

Department:  Collection 
Budget Status:  Budget: Paid by Clear Peak 

Bid: $N/A 
Actual to Date: $35,000 

 

Other Entities: 
Consultants: 
 

Clear Peak 
SRT Consultants ‐reviewing on behalf 
of CAWD 
Raftelis – providing rate study 

Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges:  Groundwater treatment and 
reliability concerns. 

Schedule:  Phase I is anticipated to start 
construction in 2020 if CAWD 
accepts water system 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: Old Flood Door in Headworks Basement 
   
Project Name:  Critical Process Onsite Flood Adaptations

Project 
Location: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Project 
Manager: 

Treanor 

Project 
Number: 

19‐01

Status:  In Design Phase 

Project 
Description 

There are a few areas of the WWTP that 
may be vulnerable to inundation during a 
100‐year river flooding event. Although 
the likelihood of inundation is low and the 
impact short term, it would be prudent to 
mitigate any possible impacts of flooding 
on the treatment process. The areas that 
could be further adapted to avoid 
flooding inundation are: Headworks 
Basement Flood Door, Influent Access 
Hatch, Secondary Effluent Diversion 
Structure Hatches, Chlorine Contact 
Channel Hatches, Waste Gas Burner 
Operations. 
 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $100,000 
Actual to Date: $0                 

Reclamation 
Share: 

15% Reclamation 

Other Entities:  Reclamation Project 

Permits 
Required: 

Coastal Development Permit

Challenges:  N/A

Schedule:   Planning in 2019 

 Modifications in 2020 

Consultants:  N/A

Contractor:  TBD

 

 

 

68



 
   
Project Name:  Update Pretreatment Ordinance

Project Location:  Pretreatment/Collections 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather/De Ocampo/Waggoner 

Project Number:  19‐02 Pre‐Treatment Ordinance

Status:  Review of draft provided by Ed Waggoner 
and Ray DeOcampo initiated 

Project 
Description 

Prepare a Pre‐Treatment Ordinance that is 
in compliance with the current standard 
of practice and the State Water Resources 
requirements. 
 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $0.00 
 

 

Reclamation 
Share: 

n/a 

Other Entities:  n/a 

Permits 
Required: 

none 

Challenges:  none 

Schedule:   Complete Draft Ordinance for review 
in January 2020. 

 Board approval of Ordinance in 
March 2020. 

Consultants:  none 

Contractor:  none 

 

 

 

Photo: View gravity pipe in Carmel easement  
   
Project Name:  Carmel Meadows Pipeline 

Project Location:  Collection System 

Project Manager:  Lather 

Project Number:  19‐03 

Status:  Preliminary design 
Project 
Description: 

The project will replace 1300 feet 
of Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP) on an 
aerial span and eight manholes by 
constructing a small pump station 
at the end of Mariposa Drive. This 
project is located on an easement 
parallel to Ribera Road and was 
originally installed in the early 
1960's. 

Department:  Collections 

Budget Status:  Budget: $1,324,000 
Actual to Date: $30,000 

 

Permits Required:  Coastal Permit and Environmental 
Review 

Challenges:  Redirecting the sewer to the pump 
station without requiring booster 
pumps for individual houses. 

Schedule:  Design FY19/20.  Construct 
FY20/21. 

Consultants:  SRT Consultants 
Contractor:  n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69



 

Photo: Areas of Potential Annexation  
   
Project Name:  Assessment District/Annexations 

Project Location:  Collection System 
Project Manager:  Lather 
Project Number:  19‐04, ‐05, ‐08, ‐09, 18‐21 

Status:  Developing CEQA Documents 
Project 
Description: 

The project will provide the 
opportunity for homes and 
businesses to get off septic 
systems and add approximately 
350 connections to the District at 
build‐out.  Interested areas include 
Corona Road, Riley Ranch, Carmel 
Valley Manor and Yankee Point. 

Department:  Collections 
Budget Status:  Budget: $50,000 

Actual to Date: $9,088 
 

Permits Required:  Environmental Review, LAFCO 
Approval 

Challenges:  Getting homeowner groups to 
form an Assessment District to pay 
for infrastructure needed to 
connect to our sewer system. 

Schedule:  Complete Environmental Review 
by December 2019 and LAFCO 
Annexation in February 2020. 
 

Consultant:  Denise Duffy & Associates 

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: SSMP to be Audited 
   
Project Name:  Collection System SSMP 

Project 
Location: 

Collection System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Project Number:  19‐06 
Status:  Draft audit under review 

Project 
Description: 

Perform an audit of the 2017 SSMP 
and update in accordance with audit 
findings and current standards. 

Department:  Collection 
Budget Status:  Budget: $30,000 

Actual to Date: $0 
 

Other Entities:  N/A 

Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges:  Collecting and analyzing information. 

Schedule: 
 
 
Consultant: 

Complete Update of SSMP in 
December 2019. 
 
Causey Consulting 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

70



 

Photo: View CIPP Liner being installed  
   
Project Name:  Rio Rd CIPP Lining project 

Project Location:  Collection System 
Project Manager:  Lather 
Project Number:  19‐07 

Status:  Design 
Project 
Description 

The rehabilitation of 4000 feet of 
24 to 27‐inch diameter Asbestos 
Cement Pipe (ACP) trunk line that 
runs along Rio Road in Carmel. 
Lining existing pipe with (CIPP) 
Cured‐In‐Place Pipe. 

Department:  Collections 
Budget Status:  Budget: $1,340,000 

Actual to Date: $0 
 

Permits Required:  N/A 

Challenges:  Traffic Control. 

Schedule:  Construct late Spring 2020. 
Consultant: 
 
Contractor: 

Design by Kennedy/Jenks  
 
TBD 

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: New #1 Water System where Corrosion System 
Project will be Installed 

   
Project Name:  WWTP – 1 Water Corrosion Control 

Project 
Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project Manager:  Ed Waggoner 

Project Number:  19‐10 

Status:  In 50% Design/Research Phase 

Project 
Description 

The number 1 Potable Water 
Distribution System was installed in 
the early 1970’s when secondary 
processes were constructed at CAWD. 
The main piping is ductile iron pipe 
with service laterals of copper and 
galvanize pipes.  To prevent rust and 
pipe damage to the system, 
technology will be installed to extend 
the life of the piping system using 
chemicals or ionization equipment. 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $30,000 
Actual to Date: $5,100          

 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 1% of project cost.  

Other Entities:  CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 

Permits Required:  Coastal Development Permit 

Challenges:  Using New technologies (Lorex 
Company) 

Schedule:   Design to be completed in 2019  

 Construction anticipated for 
December 2019 

Consultants:  In house (Design Plant Engineer) 

Contractor:  TBD 

 

 

71



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: Sound Barriers partially installed around High 
Pressure RO Pumps  

  
Project Name: MF/RO Sound Barriers 

Project Location: Reclamation – MF/RO 

Project 
Manager: 

Treanor 

Project Number: 19-12 

Status: Construction in progress 

Project 
Description 

Sound from the RO feed pumps 
is suspected to create a slightly 
audible humming noise offsite 
due to the fact that these are 
high horsepower pumps an are 
not enclosed.  This project will 
result in a new sound enclosure 
designed to absorb sound to 
reduce potential offsite noise 
and to reduce the noise inside 
the MF/RO facility.  
    
   

Department: Treatment 

Budget Status: Budget: $35,000 
Actual to Date: $6,984            

 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100% 

Other Entities: Reclamation Project 

Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges: N/A 

Schedule: • Construction in progress, 
planned completion by end 
of 2019 
 

Consultants: N/A 

Contractor: N/A 

 

 
Photo: View of sewer line being replaced 

  
Project Name: Monte Verde & 2nd sewer line 

replacement  

Project 
Location: 

Collection System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Project 
Number: 

19-11 

Status: Construction completed 

Project 
Description: 

Replacement of damaged 6” sewer 
line with 8” line. This segment has 
had 2 previous SSO’s and is under 
capacity. Replacing line prior to 
road resurfacing project. 

Department: Collection 
Budget Status: Budget: $150,000 

Bid: $91,100 
Actual to Date: $0 

 

Other Entities: N/A 

Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges: Narrow road with multiple buried 
utilities. 

Schedule: 
 
 
Contractor: 

Construction in September-October 
2019. 
 
Monterey Peninsula Engineering 
 

72



 

Photo: View of proposed sewer line realignment  
   
Project Name:  Upper Rancho Canada Sewer line re‐

alignment and size increase  

Project 
Location: 

Collection System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Project 
Number: 

19‐13 

Status:  Design  

Project 
Description 

This project relocates an existing sewer 
trunk line that serves the eastern most 
assets of the District and is located within 
the proposed County Park at Rancho 
Canada. The upstream trunk line varies in 
size from 12 inch to 8 inch and is Truss 
pipe material that was installed in the 
early 1970's.  One portion of the Rancho 
Canada golf courses will be converted to a 
subdivision of Single‐Family Dwellings 
(SFD's) and remaining land will be part of 
the Monterey Regional Park System. 

Department:  Collection 

Budget Status:  Budget: $1,500,000 
Actual to Date: $ 

Other Entities:  Monterey Regional Park District 

Permits 
Required: 

Environmental Review 

Challenges:  Providing a design that allows CAWD 
access to assets and is acceptable to the 
Park District. 

Schedule:  Design FY 19/20.   

Consultants:  MNS Engineering 
Rincon Environmental 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: BioWin Model Screenshot 
   
Project Name:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Computer Model – BioWin Modeling 

Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant

Project Manager:  Treanor 

Project Number:  19‐14 

Status:  In Study Phase 

Project Description  Development of a computer model 
to predict how changes in 
operations will affect water quality 
to inform process optimization 
activities aimed toward the goal of 
energy and cost savings.   
       
       

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $50,000 
Actual to Date: $18,890 

Reclamation 
Share: 

N/A 

Other Entities:  N/A 

Permits Required:  N/A 

Challenges:  N/A 

Schedule:   Study to occur in 2019 

Consultants:  Greeley and Hansen

Contractor:  N/A 

 

 

73



 

Photo: Existing Pipe (Left); New Pipe Example (Right) 
   
Project Name:  MF Feed Pipe Replacement 

Project Location:  Reclamation – MF/RO 

Project Manager:  Treanor 

Project Number:  19‐15 

Status:  Procurement 

Project 
Description 

The existing pipe that feeds the 
Microfiltration membranes has 
failed twice in the last 5 years due 
to defects in the original pipe 
installation. The section that failed 
was replaced each time. When the 
pipe has failed in the past it took a 
few days to complete a repair 
during which time the MF system 
was offline. To mitigate any 
additional failures, it is planned to 
replace all the existing piping and 
redesign the pipe supports to 
reduce the physical stresses on the 
pipe. 
       
     

Department:  Reclamation 

Budget Status:  Budget: $35,000 
Actual to Date: $7,847      

 

Reclamation 
Share: 

100% 

Other Entities:  Reclamation Project 

Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges:  Maintaining MF/RO Production 
during construction 

Schedule:   Design and Procurement of 
Materials in January of 2020 

 Construction in Spring 2020 
 

Consultants:  N/A 

Contractor:  N/A 

 

 

 

Photo: Example Trailer Standby Generator  
   
Project Name:  Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power

Project Location:  Reclamation – MF/RO

Project Manager:  Treanor 

Project Number:  19‐16 

Status:  Preliminary Design 

Project 
Description 

The Reclamation Project 
facilities were not designed to 
include standby power to run 
the facility in the event of a 
power outage. The Reclamation 
Project has decided to pursue 
standby power using a portable 
trailer mounted generator.
     
     
       

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $350,000 
Actual to Date: $0              

Reclamation 
Share: 

100% 

Other Entities:  Reclamation Project

Permits 
Required: 

N/A 

Challenges:  N/A 

Schedule:   Preliminary Design in Fall 
2019 

 Potential Implementation 
in 2020 
 

Consultants:  Beecher Engineering

Contractor:  N/A 

 

 

74



 

 

Photo: View of portion of Hatton Canyon Access Road 
that was repaired to allow access for construction 

equipment 
   
Project Name:  Hatton Canyon Road Maintenance  

Project 
Location: 

Collection System 

Project 
Manager: 

Lather 

Project 
Number: 

19‐17 

Status:  Construction completed 
Project 
Description 

Grading and re‐establishing 
drainage of roughly 1500 feet of 
storm damaged road uphill of the 
pipeline project. Cal OES provided 
a $298,000 grant to complete the 
work. 

Department:  Collections 
Budget Status:  Budget: $298,000 

Actual to Date: $0 
 

Permits 
Required: 

State Parks found project to be 
Exempt from CEQA. State Parks will 
provide a construction easement. 

Challenges:  Completing work prior to FEMA 
grant deadline of 7/31/2020 & 
without delaying the pipe bursting 
project downstream. 

Schedule:  Design in process with accelerated 
bidding and construction prior to 
12/1/2019. 

Consultants:  MNS Engineering (Design Engineer) 
Contractor:  Graniterock 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo: Eastern side of Perimeter Fence 
   
Project Name:  Treatment Plant Perimeter Fence 

Replacement 
Project Location:  Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project Manager:  Foley 

Project Number:  19‐18 
Status:  Permitting 
Project Description  The existing fence has failed and 

requires replacement to provide 
security, protect the public from 
accidently entering the facility and 
prevent wild animals from 
entering the facility. The 
replacement fence will be 
constructed in the exact same 
location on the treatment plant 
property line. 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $150,000     
Actual to Date:  $0 

Permits Required:  Coastal Commission 

Challenges:  N/A 

Schedule:   Work to occur in Fall/Winter 
2019 

Contractor:  TBD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
75



 

 

Photo: Existing air diffuser system 
   
Project Name:  WWTP – Aeration Basin 

Improvements, Basins 4A & 4B 
Project 

Project 
Location: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Project 
Manager: 

Ed Waggoner 

Project Number:  19‐19 

Status:  In 10% Vendors Research Phase

Project 
Description 

The Aeration Basins 4A & 4B need to 
have additional diffusers installed to 
ensure the proper air (oxygen) 
transfer into the wastewater to 
support the aerobic microorganisms 
in the basins. Another needed 
improvement is to prevent short 
circuiting of flows in the basins. The 
installation of one curtain baffle in 
each tank will eliminate the short‐
circuiting issue. 

Department:  Treatment 

Budget Status:  Budget: $140,000 
Actual to Date: $0.00 

Reclamation 
Share: 

Estimated at 0% of project cost. 

Other Entities:  CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project

Permits 
Required: 

No permits as project is preventative 
maintenance project 

Challenges:  Weather conditions and Scheduling

Schedule:   Design to be completed in 2019  

 Construction anticipated for 
Spring 2020 

Consultants:  In house (Design Plant Engineer), 
Environetics for Baffles 

Contractor:  TBD 

 

 

76



 
 1

 

 
 
Staff Report    
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Ed Waggoner                                               

Operations Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – October 2019 
 
DATE:            November 21, 2019               
                    
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report-Informational only; no action required 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

Plant Operation 
 

Treatment Plant: 
 

•    The treatment plant operations staff has continued finishing up projects before the rainy 
season and concentrating on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month 
of October. Staff has been working on operational efficiency in aeration system. 
Currently, staff has lowered the blower from 85%+ output down to 60% blower output 
without any indications of effluent quality problems. 
 

•    (Project # 18-09) Secondary Clarifier #1 Plant staff is continuing the process of leveling 
weir system in the clarifier. Staff is awaiting the arrival of Rebuild-It Services Group 
to return and perform startup of the clarifier.  
 

•    (Project #18-07) Digester cleaning project plant staff has met with Synagro in 
preparation of cleaning of Digester #1 starting in late November 2019. 
 
 
 

 

 

77



 
 2

Reclamation: 
 

•  CAWD Staff continues working with H2O Innovations on the remote communication and 
monitoring of the Micro Filtration and Reverse Osmosis systems to the following parties; 
Trussell Technologies, Scinor Water America, Evoqua Water Technologies and Carmel 
Area Wastewater District. CAWD staff is reassessing on how to open a data portal to the 
above companies.  
  

• CAWD staff performed one Clean-in-place (CIP) on Micro Filtration (MF) cells number #3 
which all was routine maintenance. 

. 
• CAWD staff performed Clean-in-place (CIP) wash on Reverse Osmosis Trains A, B and C 

during the month. 
 

• (Project # 18-24) Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project CAWD is now online with 
some fine-tuning adjustments for chemical dosages that will be made during the month of 
November. 

 
• Staff preformed emergency repair on the Micro Filtration feed line to the MF tank. Staff 

replaced remaining sections of old line with new materials. 
 
Training: 
 

•   Plant in-house training continues with weekly Safety meetings.  
 

•   Operations and Laboratory Staff attended the Neuro Color Personality Assessment 
Workshop at treatment plant on October 16. 

 
•   Mr. DeOcampo and Mr. Young attended the Fred Pryor Supervisor Training class at the 

Hotel Pacific in Monterey on October 28, 2019. 
 

•   Operations and Laboratory staff attended the Sexual Harassment Training at the 
treatment facility. Ed Waggoner, Kevin Young and Ray DeOcampo attended the 
Supervisory Sexual Harassment Training at the main office board room on October 31, 
2019. 
 

Capital Improvement  
 

•   Staff continues to communicate with Patrick Treanor (CAWD) on the 
Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for 
the following areas; Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, 
Chlor/Dechlor Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 1 Control 
Building and Dewatering Building.  

 

78



 
 3

Meetings Attended 
 
 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting October 10 at Marina Coast 

Water District offices in Marina.  
 

 Monterey Bay Water Works Association Board meeting at Moss Landing Cafe on 
October 10. 

 
 Telephone conference call on October 18 on Micro Filtration/Reverse Osmosis 

Operational Support from Trussell Technologies. 
 
 

Discharge Permit Violations 
 

•   No Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of October 2019. 
 
•   No Violations on the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) 

NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 for the month of October 2019. 
 
 One Violation on the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) 

NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 for the Semi-annual sampling 
of effluent discharge through the outfall. Violation of the analyte Hexachlorobenzene 
(HCB). The reported value result was 0.11 ug/L, the not to exceed permit level is 0.026 
ug/L. See Laboratory/Environmental report for October for more detail. 

 
 
 
  
FUNDING 
 
N/A-Informational item only 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Edward Waggoner 

79



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    November 21, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Maintenance Report – October 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress 

 

 (Project 19‐10) The new 1 water filtration system is assembled and will be 

installed at the Chlorination/Dechlorination Building. The goal is to reverse the 

corrosion in the galvanized pipes to improve the water quality for emergency 

eyewash stations and to extend the life of the galvanized piping.  

 

 (Project 18‐05) Staff is focused on adding the new navigation template so that the 

remaining Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) screens can be 

migrated to the Ignition SCADA platform. The consultants performing the work 

include Inductive Automation and Informative Controls.  

 

Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 

 (Project 18‐07) Staff is preparing for the digester 1 cleaning project by installing 

piping components to isolate the digester and preparing the valving necessary to 

dewater the digester.   

 

 (Project 18‐02) The new Report Builder server has been installed and the 

consultant, Worksmart Automation, is in the process of configuring the database 

to accept the values provided by the new SCADA system. The new system will 

replace the soon to be obsolete Windows 7 server system.  

 

80



 

Staff Development 

 

 Chris Foley attended the Annual Sewer Summit Conference on October 17th. 

Training was provided for emergency response and collections ordinances.  

 

Work Order Metrics 

Preventive Maintenance      

       
Total Work Orders Generated      117

Total Work Orders Closed/Done      50

Total Work Orders Still Open      67

Percentage of Work Orders Completed      42.74%

       
Corrective Maintenance      
 

         

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

  Emergency  5       

  Critical   5       

  Urgent  12       

  Routine  12       
 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

81



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:              November 21, 2019 
 

Subject:          General Engineering 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities. 

 

General Engineering 

 

The Principal Engineer attended the CALAFCO conference as a LAFCO Commissioner 

for Santa Cruz County between October 30 and November 1, 2019.  She attended 

workshops and networked with LAFCO staff from Monterey County and other 

counties.  The following summarizes her experience at the conference: 

 

 Learned about the issues with Septiva Water in Southern California and how 

true corruption was investigated.  The customers were being delivered water 

that was contaminated and brown colored.  For decades the service charges were 

being pocketed by the BOD and the GM with no money going to treatment costs 

and upgrades.  In the interim,  LAFCO worked with the County to straighten the 

situation out and they are preparing to have the water agency run by a private 

company or public utility.   

 Took LAFCO 101 to better understand the basics of the process and legal 

framework.  Learned about the authority and purpose of LAFCO, the review 

process, laws and cases that are relevant to LAFCO decisions, and about 

updating Sphere’s of Influence and Municipal Service Reviews.  Municipal 

Service reviews are intended to shed light on issues of agencies. 

 Attended the Coastal Region Roundtable and met Commissioners from 

Monterey County.  Discussed various issues pertinent to the Coastal Region of 

California. 

82



 Attended the session titled “Water, Water Everywhere but not a Drop to Drink”. 

 Learned that there are 7,500 public water systems in the State and 90% of the 

violations of the drinking water requirements are from systems with less than 

500 connections.  The Waterboard is reluctant to accept any more small systems 

and prefer consolidation and partnerships with other water purveyors. 

 Attended the session titled “Housing is a municipal Service”.  With housing 

shortages for median and low‐income workers, there’s a push to annex more 

areas and provide water and sewer services to them.  The pros and cons of this 

dilemma were discussed.  Central California and Southern California have 

different issues from Coastal Communities where we are trying to preserve the 

agricultural land.   

 

On October 30, 2019 the Principal Engineer attended the California Water and 

Environment Association’s (CWEA) Northern Regional Committee meeting and is the 

current secretary for the committee.   

The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2019 Mass 

Annexation, including Carmel Manor and Corona Road.  As part of the environmental 

review process, CAWD has contacted nine Native American associations regarding any 

issues with the annexation.  Ms. Ann Marie Sayers of the Indian Canyon Mutsun Band 

of Costanoan has indicated that there are concerns about earthwork in the area of the 

Corona Road project.  We have requested her direction regarding any mitigations that 

will need to be included in the environmental documents. 

 

SRT Consultants (SRT) is completing a draft of Task 2 of the due diligence engineering 

study of September Ranch water system which includes an estimate of probable cost of 

owning and operating the water system.  Clear Peak Group has requested that CAWD 

staff meet with them in the near future so they can give us an update of the status of 

the water system approval from the State Waterboard. We have received and reviewed 

the preliminary sewer system design by Whitson Engineering and are continuing to 

request that the number of sewer pump stations be reduced.  There are two proposed 

pump stations with less than five homes connected to each. 

 

Graniterock commenced construction of the Hatton Canyon Access Road grading 

project on October 28, 2019.  During the pre‐construction meetings CAWD, State Parks, 

MNS Engineers, and Graniterock staff agreed that additional fill was needed to be 

brought to the site in order to raise the road levels to their original elevation.  It was 

agreed that fill could be trucked from excess soil piles at our treatment plant on a Time 

and Materials cost basis.  An additional six truckloads of soil was obtained from fill 

piles at Rio Park.  During placement of the fill along the access road, State Parks 

83



requested that an additional 500 feet of V‐ditch be added to the project in order to 

provide better drainage controls and a rolling dip was deleted.  With the changes, we 

anticipate the total project costs to still be within the grant amount of $297,918.80. 

 

A draft of the Sewer System Management Plan Audit has been circulated for review.  

Once CAWD staff have provided comments, Mr. Causey will finalize the audit and 

update the Sewer System Management Plan.  

 

Collections 

 

Monterey Peninsula Engineering (MPE) has completed construction of the Monte 

Verde Sewer Replacement project.   

 

  

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

84



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  November 21, 2019 
 
Subject: Reclamation Audit 06-30-19 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving the CAWD/PBCSD 
Reclamation Project Audit 06-30-19. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Audit 06-30-19 was approved at the Reclamation 
Management Committee (RMC) at its November 6, 2019 meeting.  A copy of the Project Audit 
is attached. 
 
Items approved by the RMC are brought to CAWD or PBCSD Board, as appropriate, for 
approval and any applicable resolution. 
 
 
FUNDING 
 
All Reclamation Project funding is covered by the Project or by the Pebble Beach Company and 
Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group, as project guarantors. 
 
 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-54 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING 
THE CAWD/PBCSD RECLAMATION PROJECT AUDIT  

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 06-30-19 
 

-oOo- 
 

WHEREAS, the attached CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Audit for the year ended 

June 30, 2019 was approved at the Finance Officer’s Working Group and Technical Advisory 

Committee group levels and final approval was given by the Reclamation Management 

Committee (RMC) at its November 6, 2019 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, items approved by the RMC are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD Board, as 

appropriate, for approval and any applicable resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby adopt the attached CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 

Audit for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on November 21, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS 

 

     ________________________________________________ 
     President of the Board 
ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
Secretary of the Board 

117



STAFF REPORT         
 

                 

To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Rach�l Lather, Principal Engineer 

 

Date:    November 21, 2019 

 

Subject:    Acceptance  of  final  completion  of  the Monte  Verde  Extension  and  2nd 

Avenue Sewer Line Replacement Project.  Project #19‐11. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It  is recommended  that  the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2019‐55 accepting  the 

completed project and directing the General Manager to file a notice of completion for 

the subject project.  In addition, the resolution accepts the cost of changes to the project 

in the amount of $9,557.13 and authorizes the General Manager to approve the project 

Change orders and make final payment of the contract. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The originally budgeted project consisted of excavation, removal of a six‐inch diameter 

asbestos  cement  pipe  and  replacement with  an  eight‐inch  diameter  PVC  (polyvinyl 

chloride) pipe.   During construction, conflicts with gas and water  lines  located within 

inches  of  the  existing  sewer  line were  encountered.    This  required  hand  digging  of 

approximately 50 feet of the 380 feet of pipe.   The work was completed on a time and 

materials basis  and  added up  to  $9,557.13.   This  amount  is  above  the  $4,555  amount 

your Board authorized for the General Manager to approve for project change orders.  It 

is  recommended  that your Board  authorize  the General Manager  to  approve  the  full 

amount of the change order. 

 

On November 4, 2019  the District Engineer  filed a Certification of Completion  for  the 

pipeline  replacement project with  the Board Secretary  (Copy attached.). All work has 

been  satisfactorily  completed  in  accordance with  the  Plans  and  Specifications which 

were  approved  by  the  Board  of  Directors  and  the  Contract  awarded  to Monterey 

Peninsula Engineering (MPE), by Board Resolution 2019‐37 July 25, 2019. 

 

Staff  now  recommends  that  the  Board  of Directors  accept  the  Project  and  direct  the 

General Mange  to  file  a Notice of Completion with  the Monterey County Recorder’s 

 

118



Office.  

 

 

FUNDING 

 

The project was awarded to MPE for $91,100.  A total of $9,557.13 in change orders were 

approved by the District during construction.  A final contract price of $103,782.13 has 

been agreed upon by both parties and will be the record cost of the completed project. 

The project budget is $150,000. 
 

119



120



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐55 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING COMPLETED PROJECT AND  

DIRECTING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR  

THE MONTE VERDE EXTENSION AND SECOND AVENUE 

SEWER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND APPROVE TOTAL PROJECT COST 

CHANGES IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,557.13  (Project #19‐11) 
 

-oOo- 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater District, 

Monterey County, California, that:  

  WHEREAS, the Principal Engineer has provided the Board an accounting of the cost of 

changes to the Monte Vista Extension and Second Avenue Sewer Line Replacement Project 

(the “Project”)  in the amount of $ 9,557.13, in excess of the contracted amount of $91,100   

which changes were due to unforeseen underground utility conflicts that required hand 

digging and placement of the sewer line in those locations; and 

  WHEREAS, the Board previously authorized the General Manager to approve change 

orders for the Project not to exceed $4,555, and therefore the Board is requested to ratify the 

additional amount of $5,012.13 in change orders; and 

  WHEREAS,  the Principal Engineer of said District has  filed with  the Secretary of said 

District an Engineer’s Certificate regarding completion of the construction of the Project done 

under  and  pursuant  to  the  contract  between  said  District  and  Monterey  Peninsula 

Engineering, Inc., dated  July 25, 2019; and 

121



 

  WHEREAS, it appears to the satisfaction of this Board that said project provided for 

under said contract has been completed as provided in said contract and the plans and 

specifications therein referred to and that the work was completed on September 27, 2019. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED as follows: 

  1.  That acceptance of said Monte Verde Extension and Second Avenue 

Sewer Line Replacement Project be, and it is hereby made and ordered in accordance with 

California Civil Code §9200(a). 

  2.  That in accordance with California Civil Code Section §9204 the General Manager is 

directed to file for record with the County Recorder of the County of Monterey a notice of 

completion as of the date of acceptance by the District of said Monte Verde Extension and 

Second Avenue Sewer Line Replacement Project as required by law. 

  3. The expenditure of the total amount of $9,557.13 for change orders for the Project by 

the General Manager is hereby ratified and the General Manager is authorized in accordance 

with law to make final payment under the contract. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on November 21, 2019 by the following vote: 

  AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

  NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

  ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

 

122



 

               _____________________________ 

                President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

  Secretary of the Board 

 

123



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:  Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 

Date:  November 21, 2019 

Subject:  Appointment of President, President Pro Tem,  

Secretary, and Secretary Pro Tem to the Board 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The current terms of office for the President of the Board, President Pro Tem, 

Secretary to the Board, and Secretary Pro Tem expire December 13, 2019. 

 

Therefore, it is necessary for the Board of Directors to adopt a resolution electing a 

member of the Board to act as the President of the Board, and to elect a member of the 

Board to act as the President Pro Tem of the Board, both for a one‐year term 

commencing December 13, 2019. 

 

It is also necessary for the Board to appoint a Secretary of the Board and a Secretary 

Pro Tem, both for a one‐year term commencing December 13, 2019. 

 

 

124



CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ‐ TERMS OF OFFICE  
 

1993‐94  Joyce Stevens, President  Arthur Haseltine, Vice President 
 
1994‐95 

 
Arthur Haseltine, President  John Floyd, Vice President 

 
1995‐96 

 
Arthur Haseltine, President  Paul Beemer, Vice President 

 
1996‐97 

 
Paul Beemer, President  Brian Congleton, Vice‐President 

 
1997‐98 

 
Paul Beemer, President  Brian Congleton, Vice‐President 

 
1998‐99 

 
Brian Congleton, President  Charlotte Townsend, Vice President 

 
1999‐00 

 
Brian Congleton, President  Charlotte Townsend, Vice‐President 

 
2000‐01 

 
Charlotte Townsend, 

P id

Joyce Stevens, Vice‐President 
 
2001‐02 

 
Charlotte Townsend, 

P id

Joyce Stevens, Vice President 
 
2002‐03 

 
Joyce Stevens, President  Robert Kohn, Vice‐President 

 
2000‐04 

 
Joyce Stevens, President  Robert Kohn, Vice President 

 
2004‐05 

 
Robert Kohn, President  Ken White, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2005‐06 

 
Ken White, President  William Englander, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2006‐07 

 
Ken White, President  William Englander, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2007‐08 

 
Charlotte Townsend, 

President 

Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2008‐09 

 
Charlotte Townsend, 

President 

Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2009‐10 

 
Robert Kohn, President  Greg DʹAmbrosio, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2010‐11 

 
Robert Kohn, President  Greg DʹAmbrosio, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2011‐12 

 
Charlotte Townsend, 

President 

Greg DʹAmbrosio, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2012‐13 

 
Charlotte Townsend, 

President 

Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2013‐14 

 
Ken White, President  Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2014‐15 

 
Ken White, President 

Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2015‐16 

Ken White, President  Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

 
2016‐17 

Ken White, President  Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

125



 
 

2017‐18     

 
 

Ken White, President 
 

Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 
 

2018‐19      
 

Ken White, President 
 

 

        Robert Siegfried, President Pro‐Tem 

 

126



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐56 

 

A RESOLUTION SELECTING A PRESIDENT AND PRESIDENT PRO TEM, AND 

APPOINTING A SECRETARY AND SECRETARY PRO TEM OF THE CARMEL AREA 

WASTEWATER DISTRICT, FOR A TERM OF ONE YEAR COMMENCING ON  

DECEMBER 13, 2019 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 
  WHEREAS, as authorized by law, the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater 

District has heretofore acted from time‐to‐time to appoint one of its members as President of the 

Board and one of its members as President Pro Tem, and has also from time‐to‐time appointed a 

Secretary and a Secretary Pro Tem; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, following an election held by the Board of 

Directors this date, that: 

  1.  ______________ shall act as the President of the Board for a term of office of one year 

(or until his/her successor is elected); 

  2.  ______________ shall act as the President Pro Tem of the Board for a term of one year 

(or until his/her successor is elected); 

  3.  Domine Barringer is hereby appointed Secretary of the Board for the period of one 

year (or until his/her successor is appointed); 

4. Kristina Pacheco is appointed Secretary Pro Tem for the period of one year (or until 

his/her successor is appointed); 

  5.  That each of the above terms of office or appointments shall commence on December 

13, 2019; and 

  6.  That the selection of the above named Secretary, together with statistical facts 

regarding the Board, shall be reported to the California Secretary of State and to the County 

Clerk of Monterey County as required by Government Code §53051.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on November 21, 2019, by the following vote: 

 

  AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

  NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

  ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

  ABSTAIN:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

127



 

 

              ___________________________________ 

ATTEST:              President of the Board 

 

___________________________________ 

Secretary of the Board 

128



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    November 21, 2019 

 

Subject:  CAWD Pension Plan – Actuarial Review July 1, 2019 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the Carmel Area Wastewater 

District 2019 Actuary Report prepared by Nicolay Consulting. 

 

 

DISCUSSION  
 
Nicolay Consulting, the District’s actuary, has completed the July 1, 2019 report for the Strategic 
Asset Management Plan (SAM).  The plan was reviewed by the Pension Committee on 
November 7, 2019. 
 
Actuarial Report Highlights: 
Employer Contribution for plan year ending June 30, 2019:
       Annual Contribution to fully amortize the Unfunded Actuarial 
       Accrued Liability in five years (adjusted for monthly contributions)

 
$-0-

Market Value of Asset on July 1, 2019 $5,432,101
Actuarial Asset Value on July 1, 2019 $5,368,290
Present Value of all Accrued Plan Benefits on July 1, 2019 $5,211,326
Number of Participants at July 1, 2018
       Retired participants receiving benefits 3 
       Terminated vested participants entitled to future benefits 4 
       Active participants 6 
       Total participants 13 
 
The plan’s funded status on an All Expected Future Benefits basis (represents the present value 
of all expected future benefits under the plan including benefits expected to be earned for future 
service based on future salary increases) as follows: 

 97%   June 30, 2016 
 96%   June 30, 2017  

           100%   June 30, 2018 
           103%  June 30, 2019 

 

129



The unfunded actuarial accrued liability as of July 1, 2019 is ($156,964). 
 
FUNDING  

 

The 2019 Actuary Report recommended minimum required contribution for the 2019/20 

Plan Year is $‐0‐.     

 

The charge from Nicolay Consulting Services to prepare actuarial report and employee 

statements has not yet been received.  However, there is a budget provision of $15,000 

that should be sufficient to cover the costs of both the Actuarial Review and annual 

GASB 68 calculations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

130



 
 
 

 
Carmel Area  

Wastewater District 
Pension plan 

2019 Actuary’s Report 

Actuarially Determined Contribution for Plan Year 2019/20 

 

 Valuation Date: July 1, 2019 

 Plan Year Ending: June 30, 2020 

 Tax Year Ending: June 30, 2020 

 

 

 

 

131



October 16, 2019 

 

 

Ms. Barbara Buikema 

Carmel Area Wastewater District 

P0 Box 221428 

Carmel, CA 93922 

Dear Ms. Buikema: 

Re:  Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan - July 1, 2019 Actuary's Report   

We have performed an actuarial valuation of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan (the “Plan”) for the 

purpose of determining the plan’s funding status as of July 1, 2019 and Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) for 

the 2019/20 Plan Year.  This report is provided solely for this purpose and should not be used or relied upon for other 

purposes. It also should not be disclosed or distributed to a third party, unless we provide written permission. 

This report is based on actual experience through June 30, 2019 and plan provisions in effect on July 1, 2019.  The 

valuation and cost calculations for the 2019/20 Plan Year, as summarized in this report, are based on participant data 

and un-audited Plan financial information provided by Carmel Area Wastewater District (the “District”) as of July 1, 

2019. 

All costs, liabilities, and other factors under the plan were determined in accordance with generally accepted actuarial 

principles and procedures.  In our opinion, the actuarial assumptions used are individually reasonable taking into account 

the experience of the plan and consistent expectations as to future experience.  In combination, the actuarial assumptions 

represent our best estimate of the anticipated experience under the plan.  The costs and actuarial exhibits presented in this 

report, in our opinion, fully and fairly disclose the actuarial position of the plan. 

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report due to 

such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or demographic 

assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases or decreases expected as part of the natural 

operation of the methodology used for these measurements (such as the end of an amortization period); and changes 

in plan provisions or applicable law.  Due to the limited scope of this assignment, we did not perform an analysis of 

the potential range of possible future measurements. 

We have met the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions 

contained herein.  There is no relationship between the plan sponsor and our employer that would impair our objectivity 

in preparing this report. 

We would be pleased to answer any questions on the material contained in this report or to provide explanation or 

further detail as may be appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nicolay Consulting Group     

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Gary E. Cline, ASA, MAAA, FCA, EA 

Vice President & Chief Operating Officer 

132



 

 

 

 

 

Pages 

 

SECTION I Summary 1 - 4 

 

 

SECTION II Valuation Funding Information 5 - 8 

 

 

SECTION III Asset Information 9 - 10 

 

 

SECTION V Census Data 11 - 12 

 

 

SECTION VI Assumptions and Methods 13- 14 

 

 

SECTION VII Plan Provisions 15 - 17 

133



A. Highlights 

 

 Actuarially Determined Contribution for plan year ending June 30, 2020: 

 

  Annual Contribution to fully amortize the Unfunded Actuarial 

   Accrued Liability in five years (adjusted for monthly contributions)  $0 

 

 Market Value of Asset on July 1, 2019 $ 5,432,101 

 

 Actuarial Asset Value on July 1, 2019 $ 5,368,290 

 

 Present Value of all Accrued Plan Benefits on July 1, 2019 $ 5,211,326 

 

 Number of Participants at July 1, 2019: 

 

  Retired participants receiving benefits  3 

 

  Terminated vested participants entitled to future benefits  4 

 

  Active participants    6 

 

  Total participants  13 

 

 

 

134



B. Valuation Summary 

The Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan was established effective July 1, 1969 and has been 

amended from time to time since that date.  The October 29, 2005 Plan amendment froze benefit service as 

of October 29, 2005, credited an additional 3 years of service for active employees and reduced normal 

retirement age from 65 to 62. 

This section presents a summary of the valuation results and the funding status of the Plan at July 1, 2019: 

1. Annual Cost 

Based on funding the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a period of five years from July 1, 

2014 and each Gain/Loss over a 5 year period, the Actuarially Determined Contribution for the 2018/2019 

Plan Year is $0. 

2. Change in Annual Cost 

The Actuarially Determined Contribution decreased to $0 for the 2019/20 Plan Year compared to $0 a year 

ago.  The Plan continues to be fully funded as of June 30, 2019. 

 

 2018/2019 2017/2018 2017/2018 

(1) Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) $0 $0 $103,838 

(2) Covered Compensation (less than age 65) $711,527 $680,149 $683,592 

(3) ADC as a Percentage of Covered          Compensation 0% 0% 15.19% 

 

 

135



B. Valuation Summary, continued 

3. Funded Status 

A plan's "funded status" is measured by comparing the Plan's assets with the Plan's actuarial liability.  A 

ratio in excess of 100% means that the Plan's assets exceed the actuarial liability. 

The Plan's actuarial liability may be measured in a variety of ways.  Some of the alternatives are described 

below: 

 Hard Frozen/Terminated Plan Basis: 

This actuarial liability represents the actuarial present value of all benefits accrued as of the valuation 

date, based on service and salary at that date. 

 On-going Plan Basis: 

This actuarial liability represents the actuarial present value of all benefits allocated to plan years prior 

to the valuation date based on a particular actuarial cost method (i.e., Projected Unit Credit cost 

method).  These calculations would include a projection of salary to the anticipated date of 

retirement/termination, based on the salary scale used for determining Plan cost. 

 All Expected Future Plan Benefits: 

This actuarial liability represents the actuarial present value of all expected future benefits under the 

Plan as of the valuation date including benefits expected to be earned for future service based on future 

salary increases. Since service was frozen on October 29, 2005 this is equal to the On-going plan basis. 

The Plan's funded status is described below, based on each of these measures of actuarial liability for the 

current year and the past two years. 

 June 30, 

2019 

June 30, 

2018 

June 30, 

2017 

Actuarial Value of Assets $5,368,290 $5,126,285 $5,430,513 

Actuarial Liabilities: 

 Frozen Plan Basis 

 On-Going Plan/All Expected Future Plan Benefits 

 

$4,669,888 

$5,211,326 

 

$4,572,558 

$5,112,788 

 

$5,074,705 

$5,639,170 

 

Funded Status: 

 Frozen Plan Basis 

 All Expected Future Plan Benefits 

 

115% 

103% 

 

112% 

100% 

 

107% 

96% 

136



C. Historical Summary 

 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 

Annual Costs      

Actuarially Determined 

Contribution 
$0 $0 $103,838 $   78,940 $  88,667 

      

Employer Contribution Made 
Not  

Available 
$34,600 $78,936 $   88,680 $130,672 

 

ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF 

PLAN YEAR 

  

   

      

Market Value of Assets $5,432,101 $5,263,465 $5,418,843 $5,069,794 $5,367,658 

Actuarial Value of Assets $5,368,290 $5,126,285 $5,430,513 $5,285,090 $5,226,222 

      

ACTUARIAL LIABILITIES 

AT BEZGINNING OF PLAN 

YEAR 

  

   

      

Actuarial Accrued Liability $5,211,326 $5,112,788 $5,639,170 $ 5,455,005 $ 5,517,625 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 

Liability (Asset) 
($156,964) ($13,497) $  208,657 $    169,915 $    291,403 

      

NUMBER OF 

PARTICIPANTS 

  
   

      

Retired 3 3 3 2 2 

Disabled 0 0 0 0 0 

Vested Termination 4 4 5 5 5 

Active      6     6      6     7     8 

      

Total 13 13 14 14 15 

      

      

 
 

137



A. Development of the 2019/2020 Employer Contribution  

  Contribution required to amortize the July 1, 2019 unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a closed 

5-year period plus gains and losses over 5 years. 

 

 

 (a) Normal cost at July 1, 2019 $ 0 

 

 (b) Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial  

  Accrued liability since July 1, 2019 over 5 years, payable 

  as of beginning of year [see Section II(C)]  0 

 

 (c) Interest adjustment for monthly payments at 4.50%  0 

 

 (d) Actuarially Determined Contribution for 2019/2020 plan year, 

  payable monthly $ 0 
 

 

 

138



B. Development of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 

 

  1. Projected Unit Credit actuarial accrued liability as of 

  July 1, 2019 

   (a) Active participants  $ 2,247,895 

   (b) Retired participants  1,982,810 

   (c) Disabled participants  0 

   (d) Terminated vested participants  980,621 

     $ 5,211,326 

 

  2. Actuarial Value of Assets as of July 1, 2019  5,368,290 

 

  3. Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (asset) as of 

  July 1, 2019 (1) - (2)  ($ 156,964) 
 

 

 

139



C. Summary of Amortization Bases Used in Development of 2019/2020 
 Employer Contribution Range 

Amortization bases for the District have been fully amortize as of June 30, 2019.  Future actuarial 

gains and losses on/after July 1, 2019 will be amortized over a 5-year period beginning on the date 

established. Since the Plan is fully funded, the amortization payment is zero. 

 

      Annual 

     Remaining Amortization 

   Date Initial Balance Payment 

  Initial Estab- Period on (Payable 

 Item Amount lished (Years) 7/1/2019 Monthly)  

 

 Total       N/A/  0 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

140



A. Statement of Plan Assets at June 30, 2019 

The assets of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Pension Plan are invested with Commonwealth 

Financial Network 

 

 

 Investments: 

  Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 182,471 

  Pooled Mutual Funds-Equity  3,338,876 

  Pooled Mutual Funds-Fixed Income  1,878,706 

  Participant Loans  21,890 

 Cash value at June 30, 2019 $ 5,421,943 

 Receivable from disbursement account   10,158 

 Loan payment receivable  0 

  Market Value assets at June 30, 2019 $ 5,432,101 

 

 

 

141



B. Changes in Assets during the 2018/2019 Plan Year 

 

 1. Market Value assets at July 1, 2018   $ 5,263,465 

 

 

 2. Changes during year 

 

  (a) Credits 

    (i) Employer contributions $ 34,600 

    (ii) Participant contributions  0 

   (iii) Earned income   143,532 

   (iv) Investment gain (unrealized and realized)    150,943 

    (v) Total credits    329,075 

 

  (b) Charges  

    (i) Investment Expenses $ 30,174 

    (ii) Retirement and Disability benefits  128,423 

   (iii) Lump sum benefits  0 

   (iv) Loan defaulted  0 

   (v)  Administrative fees   1,842 

   (vi) Total charges              160,439 

 

 3. Market Value assets at June 30, 2019 = 1 + 2(a)(v) - 2(b)(v)   $ 5,432,101 
 

 

142



 

 

C. ACTUARIAL VALUE OF ASSETS – ASSET AVERAGING 

 
 

  (1) July 1, 2019 Market Value   $ 5,432,101 

 

 

  (2) Previous Asset Gains and Losses   

 (i) 

Amount 

(ii) 

Weighting 

(iii) 

(i) x (ii) 

(a) 2017/18 Gain 

(b) 2016/17 Loss 

(c) Total Asset Adjustment 

 $29,598 

 132,238 

2/3 

1/3 

 

$19,732 

     44,079 

$63,811 

 

 

(3) Adjusted Assets [(1) – (2)(e)(iii)] 

 

 

(4)  Minimum Actuarial Value of Assets  [ 85%x(1) ] 

 

 

(5)  Maximum Actuarial Value of Assets  [ 115%x(1) ] 

 

 

(6)  Actuarial Value of Assets [ (3); not less than (4) or more than (5) ] 

 

$5,368,290 

 

 

4,617,286 

 

 

6,246,916 

 

 

$5,368,290 

 

 

 

 

143



A. Participant Census Reconciliation 

 

   

   Terminated 

  Active participants Retired Disabled 

  parti- with parti- parti- 

  cipants vested rights cipants cipants Total 

 

  1. Plan participants on 

  July 1, 2017    6  4   3   0  13 

  2. Data corrections     -    -    -    -    -  

  3. New entrants     -    -    -    -    -  

 4. Terminated vested participants      -  -  -       -                  - 

  entitled to future benefits     -    -    -    -    -  

  5. Terminated non-vested participants   -    -    -    -    -  

  6. Participants retiring     -   -    -        -                   -  

  7. Participants becoming disabled     -    -       -                  -                   - 

 8. Participants paid lump sum benefits  -      -  -     - 

- 9. Deaths      -    -        -    -          -  

 10. Deaths with beneficiary     -    -    -    -    -  

 11. Certain period expired     -    -   -    -    -  

 12. Rehired     -   -   -    -    -  

 13. Plan participants on July 1, 2018  6  4  3  0  13 
 
  

 

 

 

 Active Participants July 1, 2019 July 1, 2018 

 

  Average Age:  50.93 49.93 

  Average Service Plan Participation:  20.97  19.97 

  Average Annual Salary:  $118,588 $113,932 

 

 

 

144



B. Classification of Participants on July 1, 2019 

 

 Fully Non-  

 Vested Vested Total 

 

  1. Active participants accruing benefits: 

 

   (a) Under normal retirement age  6  0  6 

   (b) Over normal retirement age  0  0  0 

   (c) Total  6  0  6 

 

  2. Terminated participants with deferred vested benefits  4  0  4 

 

  3. Retired and disabled participants presently receiving 

   benefit payments  3  0  3 

 

  4. Total = (1c) + (2) + (3)      13  0  13 

 
  

 

C. Age and Service Profile of Active Participants 

 

  Completed Years of Accrual Service July 1, 2019  

 

 Age  1-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-30 30+  Total 

 

  0-19  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 20-24  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 25-29  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 30-34  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 35-39  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 40-44  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 45-49  0  0  0  2  1  1  4 

 50-54  0  0  0  1  1  0  1 

 55-59  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 60-64  0  0  0  0  1  0  1  

 65-69  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

   70+      0  0           0               0  0    0   0 

 

      0  0           0             3      3    1   6 

 

 

 

145



A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation of the 

Plan follows: 

Actuarial Methods:  

  

Actuarial Cost Method: Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method 

 

Valuation of Assets: Effective July 1, 2014, the Actuarial Value of Assets are determined 

based on the smoothed market value (without phasing).  Under this 

method, a gain or loss for a year is determined by calculating the 

difference between the expected value of the assets for the year and 

the fair market value of assets at the valuation date.  The actuarial 

value of assets is equal to the market value of plan’s assets with gains 

subtracted or losses added at the rates described as follows: 

 

(1)  2/3 of the prior year’s gain or loss, plus 

(2) 1/3 of the second preceding year’s gain or loss 

 

The asset value determined under this method will be adjusted to be no 

greater than 115% and no less than 85% of the fair market value. 

 

 Before July 1, 2014, assets are valued at fair market value on June 30 

as reported by the District. 

  

Actuarial Assumptions:  

  

Investment Yield: Pre-retirement, net of expenses: 

 4.50% per annum. 

  

 Post-retirement, net of expenses: 

 (a) Lump Sums: 6.25%, 

 (b) Annuities: 4.50%. 

  

  

Salary Scale: 

 

3.5% per annum. 

 

  

Rate of Retirement: Participants are expected to retire on their Normal Retirement Date. 

  

Rate of Employee Turnover: None 

  

  

  

146



 

Rate of Disability: None 

  

  

Rate of Mortality: (1) Pre-retirement:  None 

 

 

 

(2) Post-retirement: 

      (a) Lump Sums:  1994 GAR Mortality Tables, blended 50% male and 50% 

                   female. 

      (b) Annuities:      RP-2014 Top-Quartile Healthy Annuitant Generational 

     Mortality Tables with Generational Projection Scale 

     MP-2018 (Males and Female).* 

  

  

Expenses: It is assumed that expenses will be paid by investment returns greater than the 

assumed investment yield (i.e., investment return is net of expenses). 

  

  

Payment Form: 

 

 

It is assumed that : 

 

(a) 50% participants elect lump sums, 

(b) 50% participants elect annuity payments; 

 at retirement, termination, death or disability. 

  

  

Amortization Period 

of Unfunded Liabilities 

The unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are fully amortized as of July, 1 

2019. Gains and losses arise on/after July 1, 2019 will be amortized over a 5-

year period. 

  

 

*For the 2018 year the Projection Scale used was MP-2017 

147



Effective Date: July 1, 1969 

  

Most Recent 

 Restatement Date: 

 

July 1, 2003 

  

Most Recent 

 Amendment Date: 

 

Effective July 1, 2009  

  

Plan Year: July 1 to June 30 

  

Eligibility for Coverage: All employees hired prior to October 29, 2005. 

  

Employee Contribution: None required. 

  

District Contribution: Full cost of Plan. 

  

Normal Retirement Date: July 1 after reaching age 62 and completing five years of Plan 

participation. 

  

Delayed Retirement Date: First of any month following actual retirement after attaining age 62 and 

completion of five years of Plan participation.  An employee can work 

beyond his normal retirement date and continue to earn pension 

benefits. 

  

Early Retirement Date: None 

  

Disability Total and permanent disability which lasts at least six months resulting 

in termination of employment. 

  

Normal Form of 

 Retirement Benefit: 

The amount of annual retirement income determined by the benefit 

formula is payable monthly for life with 120 payments guaranteed. 

  

Automatic Form of 

 Distribution of 

 Retirement Benefit: 

Unless otherwise elected by the participant, the normal retirement 

benefit will be automatically paid to a married participant in the form of 

a reduced actuarial equivalent joint and 50% to survivor annuity. 

  

148



Optional Forms of 

 Distribution of 

 Retirement Benefit: 

If elected by the participant, his benefit, in an actuarial equivalent 

amount, may be paid in the form of: 

 

(a) a joint and survivor annuity with the reduced survivor annuity 

payable as 50%, 66-2/3% or 100% of the monthly benefit payable 

during the lifetime of the participant; 

(b) a straight life annuity; 

(c) a life only annuity; 

(d) a lump sum payment. 

  

Formula for Annual, 

 Normal Retirement 

 Benefit: 

2.5% of the average earnings paid to the employee during the highest 

one plan year, multiplied by the number of years of accrual service. 

  

Accrual Service: 

 

 

 

 

 

Total number of Years in which an employee is credited with at least 

1,000 hours of service. No accrual service shall be credited after 

October 29, 2005. Participants employed on October 29, 2005 shall be 

credited with an additional 3 years plus 0.333 years for the period July1, 

2005 through October 31, 2005. 

 

Early Retirement Benefit: None 

  

Benefit at Deferred 

Retirement: 

Greater of the accrued benefit, based on accrual service and 

compensation to late retirement date and the actuarially increased 

Normal Retirement Benefit. 

 

Disability Benefit: Immediate payment of actuarial equivalence of the accrued benefit 

calculated the same as a retirement benefit, based on average earnings 

and accrual service as of the disability retirement date. 

  

Death Benefit:  

  

 Prior to Retirement: The greater of the actuarial equivalent of the  Vested Accrued Benefit 

(applicable to married or unmarried participants), or the benefit the 

participant's spouse would have received if the participant had 

terminated on his date of death and elected to begin receiving his 

benefit under the automatic joint and 50% to surviving spouse pension 

option commencing on his earliest retirement date 

  

 After Retirement: In accordance with the annuity payment form in effect. 

149



Vesting: . 
 Years of   Vested 

Vesting 

Service  Percent 

0-2  0% 

3  20% 

4  40% 

5  60% 

6  80% 

7 or more  100% 

   
 

  

Vesting Service Total number of Years in which an employee is credited with at least 

1,000 hours of service. For participants employed on October 29, 

2005, an additional three years is credited. 

 

Benefit: Vested Accrued Benefit as of date of termination, payable as of Normal 

Retirement date.  Immediate lump sum option available.  

 

Plan Factors for Actuarial  

Equivalence 

Interest: 6.25% 

Pre-Retirement Mortality: None 

Post Retirement Mortality: 94 GAR (50% male 50% female) 

 

Termination of Plan: In the event of termination of the Plan, funds are to be distributed, to 

the extent available, in the following order: 

 

(a) benefits of participants who had retired prior to plan termination; 

(b) benefits of participants who had reached Normal Retirement Age 

at termination, but had not yet retired; 

(c) all other benefits; 

 

  

Administration: The District is the Plan Administrator. 

  

Funding of Plan: Through a Trust, assets are held at Commonwealth  Financial 

Network. 

 

150



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Acting General Manager 
 

Date:              November 21, 2019 
 

Subject:          Pebble Beach Community Services District‐ 

      Regular Board Meeting October 25, 2019 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Agenda items from the October 25, 2019 meeting that are of specific interest to this 

District: 

 

 Total cash balance at the end of September 2019 was $17.2 million (M); of that 

about $12.5 M was designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves.  

Property taxes comprise roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making 

up 12%. 

 

 The September 2019 Cash Basis Budget reflects Revenues at 2.0% of budget and 

Expenditures at 8.1% of budget (O&M 10.2% and Capital 4.4%). 

 

 Forest Lake Reservoir held 35 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 30% of 

permitted capacity.  Current storage volume is 75% above the historic average 

of 20 MG. 

 

 Total irrigation water demand for the 2019 calendar year through September 

was 776 AF (acre Feet).  Total demand for the calendar year is 10% below the 5‐

year average of  863 AF and 10%  below the 24‐year average annual usage of  

861 AF.  The month of September reflected a net storage decrease of 

approximately 15 MG at forest Lake Reservoir, compared with a net storage 

decrease of approximately 3MG for September of last year. 

 

151



 Average daily wastewater flow of 341,000 Gallons Per Day (GPD)was measured 

at the PBCSD‐Carmel gate in September. This represents 31% of the total flow at 

the CAWD treatment facility.  The measured PBCSD flow was 1% above the 

five‐year average of 339,000 GPD for the month of September and the CAWD 

total flow was 5% below the five‐year average of 1,167,000 GPD for September. 

 

 PBCSD had two Category 3 Sanitary Sewer Overflows in October. 

 

 Reclamation Storage Tank Rehab Project.  Temporary tank installation by 

Graniterock completed.  CAWD helped  by controlling the line pressures to the 

reservoir to allow continued filling of it during tank rehabilitation project. 

 

 Collection System Assessment is being performed by Wallace Group. 

 

 SCADA now allows both CAWD and PBCSD to access the same flow 

information.  Reclaimed water recovery from MF/RO is 87.5%. 

 

 Currently three facilities, the 4th Fairway Diversion, MPCC No. 8 Well, and 

MPCC No. 9 Well are online.  Total production for the 2019 calendar year‐to‐

date is approximately 6.2 MG. 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

152



 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

SUMMARY OF RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN TRUSTEES  

MEETING HELD – November 7, 2019 

 

A meeting of the Retirement Pension Plan Trustees was held on Thursday, 

November 7, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.     

 

Those Present Included:  Michael Rachel, Director, Trustee 

        Rob Wellington, Legal Counsel, Trustee 

        Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Trustee 

William J. Hastie, Jr., MBA, Managing Partner, Hastie 

Financial Group 

       

                       

I. Portfolio Performance Review 3rd Quarter 2019 
 

The portfolio remains highly diversified in the third quarter.  Mr. Hastie 

described the quarter as “volatile” because although large caps performed 

relatively well the mid and small caps did considerably less well.  Again, per Mr. 

Hastie, we’re “glad to have black ink.”  The ending portfolio balance was 

$5,370,875.69 with a time weighted return for the quarter of 0.27%.  (Time 

weighted return multiplies the returns for each holding period, which links them 

together showing how the returns are compounded over time.  It helps eliminate 

the distorting effects on growth rates created by inflows and outflows of money.)  

The change in market value for year to date is 13.12%.  Mr. Hastie anticipates the 

portfolio should breach 15% for the annual time weighted return performance.  

 

Performance review by security showed that large cap value fund (Columbia 

Dividend Income Advisor) performed well but small cap such as Federated 

Small Cap Fund and Vanguard Extended Market did not.  While mid and small 

cap did not perform well for the quarter, they have done well over the year and 

will remain in the portfolio on a “watch” basis.    JP Morgan Large Cap, because 

of concentrations in tech and healthcare, did not fared well for the quarter.   

 

There is a negative correlation between stocks and bonds and during this past 

quarter there was some evidence of a “flight to quality” or toward bonds.  The 

Vanguard Intermediate fund showed a strong performance. 

 

The portfolio composition remains at a 60% stocks 40% bonds/cash.  There was 

some discussion of whether this was still appropriate mix with the outcome 

being that 60/40 remains a prudent balance of risk and security and is widely 

used for pension funds. 

153



 

Portfolio Risk Measures (3‐year measure): 

 

  Three 

Year  S&P 500 

Five 

Year  S&P 500 

Ten  

Year  S&P 500 

Beta (a)  0.58    0.60    0.64   

Standard 

Deviation (b) 

7.42  12.18  7.48  11.93  8.37  12.55 

Mean  9.93  13.39  8.25  10.84  9.79  13.24 

Alpha  1.37    1.22    1.03   

(a) Strategy is to maintain Beta in the range of 0.60 ‐ 0.67 

(b) Strategy is to remain at roughly 2/3 of S & P 500 

 

 

II. 4th Quarter 2019 Action Plan 
 

For the 4th Quarter the strategy is to remain broadly diversified and rebalance as 

necessary.    

 Sell Vanguard Extended Market (comprised of small and mid cap stocks) 

 Buy Vanguard Mid Cap 

 

It was Mr. Hastie’s opinion that volatility in the market would continue through 

the 4th quarter but he believes the general outlook is positive.  He specifically 

mentioned that the prospect of an end to tariffs with China is potentially on the 

horizon, GDP will continue at about 2%, inflation will remain below the Federal 

Reserve target, and impeachment has yet to impact the market. 

 

 

III. 07‐01‐19 Actuarial Report 
 

The committee reviewed the 07‐01‐19 Actuarial Report prepared by Nicolay 

Consulting.  They agreed to accept the report and forward to the full board for 

review. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 

10:40 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara Buikema  

General Manager 

154



3rd Quarter Performance Review

4th Quarter Action Plan

November 7, 2019

Carmel Area Wastewater District

Defined Benefit Plan

155



3rd Quarter OVERVIEW

156



YTD as of 9/30/19 OVERVIEW

157



YTD as of 11/5/19 OVERVIEW

158



3rd Quarter OVERVIEW

159



2nd Quarter OVERVIEW

160



MARKET REVIEW – 9/30/2019

3 Month YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

S&P 500 TR 1.70 20.55 4.25 13.39 10.84

Russell 1000 1.42 20.53 3.87 13.19 10.62

Russell Mid Cap 0.48 21.93 3.19 10.69 9.10

Russell 2000 Growth -4.17 15.34 -9.63 9.79 9.08

MSCI EAFE -1.07 12.80 -1.34 6.48 3.27

MSCI Emerging Markets -4.25 5.89 -2.02 5.97 2.33

Barclays Capital US 
Aggregate 

2.27 8.52 10.30 2.92 3.38

161



4TH QUARTER 2019 FUND CHANGES

 Rebalance the rest of the portfolio

 Sell:
 Vanguard Extended Market

Buy:
 Vanguard Mid Cap

162



4TH QUARTER 2019 OVERALL PORTFOLIO

8%

14%

5%

10%

5%

7%7%

4%

8%

8%

10%

9%

5%

JP Morgan Large Cap Growth - 8%

iShares Core S&P 500 - 14%

Columbia Contrarian Core - 5%

Columbia Dividend Income - 10%

Vanguard Mid Cap - 5%

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap - 7%

Invesco Developing Markets - 7%

BlackRock Real Estate Securities - 4%

PGIM Global Total Return - 8%

Schwab US Aggregate Bond Index - 8%

Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index - 10%

PGIM High Yield - 9%

Cash - 5%

163



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

BETA:

A measure of volatility (risk) relative to the Standard & Poor's 500 Index.  Beta of 1.0 indicates 
risk equal to that of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and  
10 years.  Beta of less than 1.0 indicates risk less than that of the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 0.58 0.60 0.64

164



FUND RISK & COST STATISTICS

Mutual Fund/ETF 3 Year Beta Net Expense 
Ratio

JPMorgan Large Cap Growth 1.06 0.69

iShares Core S&P 500 1.00 0.04

Columbia Contrarian Core 1.03 0.77

Columbia Dividend Income 0.86 0.71

Vanguard Mid Cap 1.05 0.04

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap 1.09 0.91

Invesco Developing Markets 1.05 1.16

BlackRock Real Estate Securities 0.62 1.05

PGIM Global Total Return 1.28 0.63

Schwab US Aggregate Bond Index 1.01 0.04

Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index 1.22 0.07

PGIM High Yield 0.29 0.55

165



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

STANDARD DEVIATION:

Another measure of volatility (risk).  A higher Standard Deviation indicates a higher degree of volatility 
(risk) over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD Portfolio with 
the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year_
CAWD Portfolio 7.42 7.48 8.37 

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 12.18 11.93 12.55

166



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

MEAN:

Mean return over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD 
Portfolio with the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 9.93 8.25 9.79

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 13.39 10.84 13.24

167



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

ALPHA:

A measure of risk-adjusted returns.  An Alpha of 0 indicates a return proportionate to the degree of 
risk taken.  A positive Alpha indicates a return generated in excess of the degree of risk taken.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 1.37 1.22 1.03

168



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Acting General Manager 
 

Date:               September 26, 2019 
 

Subject:          Acting General Manager’s Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

This report is provided to update the Board on the activities of the Acting General 

Manager (AGM) from October 14‐October 27, 2019.  During that period, there was a 

training with District staff regarding “Neuro Colors” as a team building activity, flu 

shots and a BBQ lunch, preparation of the October 31st Board packet, a Regional Water 

Management Group meeting and a PBCSD Board meeting. 

 

Overall, the most difficult part of the two weeks was receiving, reviewing and 

managing of the staff reports for the Board packet.  This included completing the first 

set of project summaries and revising them to be consistent in the format, naming 

convention and wording.  There are many details involved in completing a Board 

packet and I believe anyone interested in being a GM should have this experience. 

 

The second observation is that there are plenty of meetings to attend.  All of them were 

interesting to me but it does take time out of the workday.  I learned about the current 

Integrated Regional Water Management grant applications and projects.  I also learned 

about various items that PBCSD reviews in addition to water reclamation. 

 

I thought that the “Neuro Colors” activity was successful.  At first there was a 

reluctance of staff to participate but it eventually led to good conversations about how 

to better work together.  Catherine Hambley did a good job of leading the group and 

helping us understand the value of all of our personality traits at the workplace. 

  

I suggest that in the future, the AGM verify that they have access to programs such as 

Main Saver, in order to approve payments and purchase orders.  Exceedio should be 

notified that there is an AGM that has authority to request access to files that are on the 

169



Administrative division J:drive.  Mainly, there are details that no one really knows 

until they are the AGM and don’t have access.  A protocol for signing documents as 

the AGM would also be good to have.   

 

It would be extremely difficult to be the GM and District Engineer/Principal Engineer 

permanently.  There are many responsibilities that take a great deal of focus and time, 

such as budget control, budget preparation and management of staff, that are not part 

of the experience over a 2‐week period.   

 

Overall, it was quite enlightening to be GM for 2 weeks and I enjoyed the experience. 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

170



STAFF REPORT 

 
To:  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

Date:  November 21, 2019 

Subject:  Quarterly Progress Report (July – Oct 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

This report is informational only – no action is required.  The Board requested a quarterly 

update of progress made throughout the District. This report is designed to offer a high‐ level 

view of the third quarter of 2019.  Much of the quarter reflects work on long term projects, 

which is reflected in the list below. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

General Management 

 

 This year has witnessed a significant increase in the number of plumbing permits 

issued.  Part of this is a result of the new Uniform Plumbing Ordinance, New 

Standard Plans and Specifications, and a new Administrative Penalties Ordinance 

that requires a lateral inspection, but it is also reflective of the healthy construction 

environment.   We’ve also used this increase as an opportunity to tighten up our 

insurance certifications – in the past we’ve been perhaps a bit “loose” and not 

always gotten the documentation right.  We’re correcting that now and I want to 

give a shout out to out front office staff for the terrific job they’re doing handling 

this and keeping our customers happy.    

 

 Continued progress being made on mass annexation with an estimated 

completion date of early 2020.  Carmel Valley Manor is concurrently in design 

phase and there are efforts being done to site a pump station on Quail Lodge 

property.  Mid Valley Shopping Center has also reached out to us with interest in 

making a connection once annexation is complete. 

 

 We continue attempting to persuade local areas to connect to the District via an 

assessment district mechanism.  This goes hand in hand with the mass annexation, 

but it is slow moving. 

 

171



 September Ranch project study by SRT Consultants ongoing.  While study of the 

water system proceeds staff is also working with Whitson Engineers and Clear 

Peak on the wastewater system.   

 

 We are proceeding with project to upgrade programmable logic control 

equipment at each of the lift stations and to move them all to Ignition ‐ the same 

software program used at the plant.  Equipment has been bid and integrator 

services obtained. 

 

• Phase 2 design proceeds slowly ‐ currently at 90% design. However, we have 

advised Kennedy Jenks that the project will be delayed until at least March 

when we anticipate a spot on the Coastal Commission’s agenda in Monterey. 

 

• We continue to work on a resolution for our After‐the‐Fact permit on Phase I 

with the Coastal Commission along with their document to move the facility 

in the event of sea level rise. We were bumped from the November 

commission meeting and are now looking at the March 2020 meeting in 

Monterey.  We have reached out to the local Commission office and asked if 

we can continue with two of our projects (i.e. perimeter fence & Reclamation 

chemical tank). 

 

• Continued to work on Hatton Canyon project – went to bid, but then decided the 

best path forward was to reject all bids and re‐bid in the Spring.  In the interim we 

have a smaller grant award for $297K that we are utilizing to rebuild and 

reinforce the utility road in Hatton Canyon.  This project will greatly benefit staff 

in providing accessibility, but it is also an excellent example of interagency 

collaboration. 

 

• We also continue to work with legal counsel on a resolution to the CRFREE and 

undergrounding of our outfall project.  CAWD supports the CRFREE project; 

however, before we sign on any dotted line, we are insisting that the question of 

financing be squared away.  This has turned into an issue because of 

misinformation to the public about our intent.  I have spoken with multiple local 

residents one‐on‐one, attended both the CSA 1 and CSA 50 meetings to speak, 

and offered to speak at local associations to clear up the matter. 

 

• After almost 20 years we have gone to bid for cleaning Digester #1 and will then 

take the next steps towards its rehabilitation. 

 

• Continued design work on Elec/Mech Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank 

172



project.  Design is in the 95% stage or near completion.  The project is now being 

held until we can resolve our permit issues with the Coastal Commission. 

 

• After implementing a new Purchase Order system in Mainsaver last year we have 

begun the process of building a Purchase Order Contract system whereby we will 

be able to archive and track contract work projects. 

 

• Completed purchase of new Vac‐Con truck in the amount of $408,907.  This is 

critical equipment for our Collections Department and one that we replace 

roughly once every 10 years. 

 

• Entered into contract for replacement of perimeter trees and interior landscaping.  

This will provide a plan for the potential removal of the eucalyptus trees that 

surround the facility and replacement with native riparian vegetation.  Anticipate 

this will be a multi‐year project; but one that is part of the long‐term strategy to 

co‐exist in the lagoon with State Parks and the neighborhood. 

 

• Completed rehab of Secondary Clarifier #1 including coating of the launders, 

weirs, and sludge collection system. 

 

• We have engaged a consultant to perform an outside audit of the District’s 

Sanitary Sewer Management Plan (SSMP) and anticipate delivery to the Board in 

early new year. 

 

• We are also looking a development of a plan to eliminate the eucalyptus from 

around the plant perimeter and replace them with native trees that would still 

provide the visual shield that we require.  This is going to be another long‐range 

project as we need to grow a new shield prior to removing the eucalyptus.  We 

also need to work with closely with the other agencies involved and regulatory 

agencies. 

 

• We are also investigating the possibility of a well at the CAWD site to replace our 

current use of #3 water for process purposes with well water.  It is still in the 

investigation phase, but not only is this a potential way to augment supplies, it 

could also be a way to “manage” lagoon water levels slightly. 

 

Financial Matters 

 

• Completed both CAWD and Reclamation audits with unqualified opinions. 

173



 

• Staff is currently at work on the 2020‐21 budget as we’re trying to bring it to the 

committee earlier.  Right now, the target is beginning of January.  Stay tuned.  I am 

not planning on pursuing any budget awards this year – simply moving the 

timeline up may be all we can handle. 

 

 

Personnel Management 

 

 Organized a NeuroColor event for management staff with the express intent of better 

team building.  It was so successful that we pushed the effort out to staff and held a 

second even in October.  Very positive feedback from staff. 

 

 I continue to encourage and facilitate training at all levels of the organization, that 

includes technical, regulatory, and leadership training. 

 

 Continued work with HR consultant to ensure that all Performance Evaluations are 

up to date.  This has been a source of understandable angst for staff, but I think that 

with only a couple of exceptions we are current.  Kudos to our HR consultant for her 

efforts. 

 

• I took a two week of vacation in mid‐October and assigned Rachel Lather the 

job of ʺActing GMʺ. She did a superb job for the District and I think she got a 

better sense of what the General Manager position might look like daily. 

 

• We’ve initiated a review of all job descriptions and an enhancement of the 

Physical Requirements.  This will be invaluable in helping us to screen new 

employees and manage back‐to‐work process for injured employees. 

 

• We have also begun the process of Employee Negotiations – a new Employee 

Ground Rules contract is ready, and staff has been preparing to meet and 

discuss.  This will be a significant and time‐consuming effort as we move into the 

4th quarter. 

 

 

Intergovernmental Relations 

• We continue to work with the City of Carmel whenever feasible.  The 

Environmental Compliance staff completed the second set of stormwater 

174



inspections for the City of Carmel‐by‐the‐Sea.  We’ve reached out to planning 

regarding business licenses, and also building department for permitting. 

 

• We have also reached out to the County to see if we can persuade them to work 

with us on notification when a business changes hands or a new license is issued.  

We would also like to be part of their permit notification process. 

 

• We are attempting to resurrect the idea of a joint project between CAWD, the City 

of Carmel, and the Mission to make a transportation “hub” between our joint 

properties.  CAWD is interested in the rehabilitation of our bridge and providing a 

connection between the City and Coastal Trail.  This idea was first floated over a 

decade ago – it’s a potentially great project but it just hasn’t gathered enough 

steam.  This is a renewed effort between that includes not only CAWD staff but 

also Director D’Ambrosio. 

 

Public & Community Relations 

 

• We are well into the process of updating or web site with Streamline vendor.  

The original goal was a board presentation in December that I am still 

optimistic about meeting.  While this may seem minor, it is really a significant 

effort from multiple staff members.  We are also engaged in obtaining updated 

photos of the District for the web site.  Our goal is to be a lead agency and 

enhance public accessibility. 

 

• Continued participation in CSAl and CSA 50 meetings on flood control. 

 

• Continue to interact with County, Big Sur Land Trust, and public about 

Districtʹs role in Carmel River Free Project and on Outfall line. 

 

• We continue to work closely with State Parks ‐ not only to manage our current 

relationship but to potentially set the tone for the long term. Staff has reached 

out to them regarding Hatton Canyon and ongoing trimming along the trails 

and easements on their property. Weʹve also discussed treating hydrogen 

sulfide issues directly at Point Lobos. There have been very preliminary 

discussions about the District taking on a contract to clean lines in Point Lobos.  

Both Daryl Lauer and Rachel Lather have done a superb job in working with 

their counterparts at State Parks. 

 

175



• I continue to participate in Integrated Regional Water Management 

(IRWM) meetings. 

 

• I attend the Special District Association Meetings quarterly with 

Director Townsend.  Although this last quarter Director Townsend was 

escorted by Chris Foley who reports not only did he enjoy it immensely 

but felt it was most informative. 

 

• We put together a public outreach program and had a table at the PBCSD 

Public Safety Day on July 20th and at the Monterey County Fair. Staff was 

very enthusiastic about participating.  We are also looking at participating in 

events with the City of Carmel. 

 

• I’m working on our relationship with PBCSD.  While I recognize that we will not 

always agree, we need to communicate better.  I believe that I am not speaking 

out of turn when I say that both Mr. Niccum and I recognize that this needs to 

start at the top – so to that end we’ve had a couple of conversations that I think 

have been good.  I believe we are both committed to continued improvement of 

our relationship. 

176



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    B. Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    November 21, 2019 

 

Subject:  Summary of Monterey County Treasurer Report dated 09‐30‐19 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

No action required – this is informational only 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

During the July – September quarter, U.S. Treasury yields continued to fall, and the 

inversion of the yield curve worsened (a classic early warning sign of recession) with 

the 10‐year Treasuries falling below those of the 2‐year Treasuries.  A deteriorating U.S. 

economic outlook was made worse by ongoing trade tension which prompted the 

Federal Reserve to cut rates by 25 basis points at both the July and September Federal 

Open Market Committee meetings.  While a U.S. recession is not in the immediate 

forecast, risks are rising including escalating U.S. China trade tensions and slowing 

growth abroad. 

 

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

  03‐31‐19  06‐30‐19 09‐30‐19

Total Assets  $1,683,748,933.92 $1,765,188,987.34 $1,557,346,900.60

Market Value  $1,672,221,350.10  $1,755,722,012.68  $1,550,705,225.56 

Days to 

Maturity 

335  337  350 

Yield  2.32%  2.43%  2.46% 

Estimated 

Earnings 

$9,095,864.80  $10,742,479.77  $9,734,550.44 

 

The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of fixed income investments, all of 

177



which are authorized by the State of California Government Code 53601. 

 

PORTFOLIO ASSET COMPOSITION 09-30-19
Corporate Notes  13.9% 

Overnight Liquid Assets  18.5% 

US Treasuries  56.9% 

Federal Agencies  3.5% 

Commercial Paper  1.6% 

Negotiable CDs  1.8% 

Supranationals  3.1% 

Municipal Bonds  <0.1% 

Asset Backed Securities  0.6%

 

The County Treasury continues to perform comparatively to portfolio benchmarks this 

quarter.    The County investment strategy continues to focus on capturing relative 

value while remaining cautious.    

 

Future Strategy:  The Treasurer has 54.2% of the portfolio invested in maturities under 

one year and 45.1% invested in the 1‐3 year maturity range and 0.70% invested in the 3‐

5 year range.  In the current interest rate environment, we continue to utilize available 

maturities to add high‐quality securities and maintain a well‐diversified portfolio.  This 

strategy will also help to position the portfolio ensuring that liquidity needs are met.  

We will continue manage the portfolio under the established tenets of safety and 

liquidity while seeking to maximize the rate of return.  

 

The investment portfolio was in compliance with all applicable provisions of state law 

and the adopted Investment Policy and contained sufficient liquidity to meet all 

projected outflows over the next six months. 

 

 

 

Note:  The full Monterey County Treasurer Report is available at: 

www.co.monterey.ca.us/taxcollector/Treasury_Main.html 

178


	01. Board Packet Cover
	03.A 10-31-19 Regular Board Meeting Minutes-Final
	03.B 11-07-19 Special Board Meeting Minutes-Pension Plan
	04. H&W Page intentional left blank
	05. CAWD Cash Receipts & Disbursements Schedule -Oct 2019
	06. CAWD Disbursements Oct 2019
	07. Recl Disbursements Oct 2019
	08. Financial Statements -Oct 2019
	09.A Collections Staff Report November 2019
	09.B October Cleaning Map
	10. Safety & Regulartory Staff Report-Nov 2019
	11. Treatment Facility Ops Report - Oct, Sep, Aug
	12. Lab & Environmental Compliance Staff Report-Nov 2019
	13. Capital Projects Implementation Plan Schedule 11-4-19
	14. Project Summaries Used 11.21.19
	15. Operations Staff Report Nov 2019
	16. Maintenance Staff Report - November 2019
	17. Principal Engineering Staff Report2 Lather-November 219
	18.A Reclamation Audit 06-30-19 - Staff Report 11-21-19
	18.B CAWD PBCSD Recl Project Audit 6.30.19  final v2
	18.C RES 2019-54 Reclamation Project Audit 06-30-19
	19.A Monte Verde and 2nd Notice of Completion - Staff Report
	19.B Notice of Completion
	19.C RES 2019-55 Monte Verde and 2nd-Notice of Completion v2
	20.A 2020 Appointment of Board President, Secretary, & Pro Tems-Staff Report 11-21-19
	20.B 2020 Directors Terms of Office
	20.C RES 2019-56 Board President, Secretary, & Pro Tems 2020
	21.A Pension Plan Actuarial Review 07-01-19
	21.B CAWD 2019 Funding Report
	23. PBCSD Meeting 10.25.19
	24.A Summary Pension Plan Meeting 11-07-19-Staff Report
	24.B Hastie Financial 4Q2019 Review
	25. Acting GM Staff Report-Lather -November 2019
	26. GM Qtrly Staff Report Jly - Oct 2019
	27. Summary Monterey County Treasurer Investment Report 09-30-19



